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Year ended January 17, 2001 through

Operating Results December 31, 2002 (a) December 31, 2001 (b)
Suite revenues $ 102,895,689 $ 10,022,272
In:erest income and other revenue $ 4,617,040 $ 2,419,499
Net income $ 18,866,639 $ 3,316,719
Funds from operations (¢) $ 27,151,973 $ 4,403,252
Distributions declared $ 21,588,201 $ 5,768,805
FFO per share $ 1.26 $ 0.70
Balance Sheet Data as of December 31, 2002 2001

Investment in hotels, net $ 388,033,707 $ 121,078,235
Total assets $ 557,754,100 $ 178,381,287
Shareholders’ equity $ 262,981,700 $ 120,460,971
Weighted-average shares outstanding 21,557,041 6,334,168
Hotels owned 48 10
Hotel suites 5,767 1,150

(a) The operating results and balance sheet data reported here for December 31, 2002 do not reflect any merger-related
transactions with Apple Suites, Inc. that occurred in 2003 or any acquistions subsequent to that date.

(b) The company was initially capitalized cn January 17, 2001; however, operations did not commence until September 7, 2001.
(c) Funds from operations (FFQ) is defined as net income (computed in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles —GAAP) excluding gains and lasses from sales of depreciable property, plus depreciation of real estate, certain
stzrt-up costs, and other various costs. For the year ended December 31, 2002, these other costs consisted entirely of imputed
interest incurred during the first quarter, related to the acquisition of Res 1. The company considers FFO in evaluating property
acnuisitions and its operating performance and believes that FFO should be considered along with, but not as an alternative to,
ne: income and cash flows as a measure of the company’s activities in accordance with GAAP. FFQ is not necessarily indicative
of cash available to fund cash needs.

Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. is a real estate investment
trust (REIT) focusing on the upscale, extended-stay suite
segment of the hotel industry. Qur hotels operate under the
Residence Inn® by Marriott® and Homewood Suites® by
Hilton brands, the nation’s leading chains of upscale
extended-stay hotels. Qur focus is to acquire high-quality
hotels that generate attractive returns for our shareholders.
As of March 21, 2003, our portfolio consisted of 66 hotels,

Lo R . s The trademarks contained herein are registered trademarks. Residence Inn®
containing a total of 7,869 suites, diversified among 9

by Marriott™ and Marriott Rewards” are registered trademarks of Marriott
International, Inc. Homewood Suites™ by Hilton is a registered trademark
of Hilton Hospitality, Inc. HHonors™ and Double Dipping™ are registered
trademarks of Hilton Honors Woridwide L.L.C.

attractive markets within 25 states.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDER»»

The year 2002 was especially active for Apple Hospitality Two. We experienced substantial
growth in almost every facet of the company. More importantly, we enjoyed solid operations
despite a weakened economy.

Yearly performance of our hotels remained competitive in 2002. Our hotels maintained a
78 percent occupancy at a $92 average daily rate. Revenue per available room averaged $71.

Annual funds from operations (FFO) exceeded $27.1 million, or
$1.26 per share. Shareholders received dividends at an annual rate
of $1.00 per share, representing a 10 percent return based on a
$10 share price.

The company welcomed many new investors in 2002. On
November 25, the company closed its second “‘best-efforts”
offering of $100 million equity capital, which, combined with
$200 million raised in the first offering, totaled $300 million
equity capital raised overall. In 2002 alone, we raised over
$162 million of that total $300 million. We extend great
thanks to David Lerner Associates, Inc., our sole managing

dealer, for their diligent efforts in this immense accomplishment.

Also in 2002, we more than tripled the size of our portfolio, adding
38 hotels. In March, we acquired the Residence Inn I Limited
Partnership, which gave us ownership of 15 Residence Inn® by Marriott® hotels containing
2,130 suites in seven states. In August, we acquired Residence Inn II Limited Partnership
comprising 23 Residence Inn hotels and 2,487 suites in 16 states. At year-end, our portfolio
included 48 Residence Inn hotels and 5,767 suites in 20 states. Today, Apple Hospitality Two
is the largest single owner of Residence Inn branded hotels.

In September, the company refinanced secured loans assumed at the purchase of its
Residence Inn I partnership. The new secured loan, in the amount of $83 million, decreased
the acquisition debt and was secured at a lower fixed annual interest rate of 7.4 percent.
This refinancing significantly reduced debt service and contributed to a more favorable
debt-to-total capitalization ratio for the company.

In an effort to further enhance returns and guest satisfaction, we began major renovations
on 13 hotels in 2002 and we plan to renovate approximately 30 additional hotels within
the next three to four years. These capital improvement projects include roofing, siding and
stair replacement, and redecoration and refurnishing of gatehouses and guestrooms. We

Glade M. Knight
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer




anticipate that these strategic renovations will maintain and improve our hotels’ competitive
positioning to drive increased rates that will subsequently contribute to greater profitability.
We have also signed a contract to install high-speed Internet access in all of our hotels. This
service is being demanded by business travelers in increasing numbers, and we hope to enjoy
greater returns by charging guests for the use of this amenity and by attracting large accounts

for whom high-speed Internet access is a requirement.

Qur company continues to grow in 2003. In January 2003, we purchased a Residence Inn in
Redmond, Washington. This hotel, containing 180 suites, is conveniently located in the Seattle
metropolitan area near the headquarters of a number of major corporations, including
Microsoft Corporation and AT&T Wireless. Built in 1999, the hotel is the most recently

constructed of our Residence Inn hotels.

On January 31, 2003, the company acquired, through merger, Apple Suites, Inc. and thereby
added to our portfolio 17 Homewood Suites® by Hilton hotels with 1,922 suites. Through its
ownership of Apple Suites, Inc. the company is now the largest single owner of Homewood
Suites branded hotels. Combinad assets of these companies total approximately $734 million
and combined equity market capitalization equals approximately $425 million, making the
company the fourth largest lodging real estate investment trust (REIT) by equity market
capitalization. We look forward to the opportunities that the addition of Apple Suites will
provide us, and we welcome the Apple Suites shareholders to the company.

We plan to launch our company web site with the filing of this report. Company filings with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), reports, information and pictures can all be
accessed at this web site. Please take the opportunity to visit us at www.applehospitality.com.
We hope the site will further enhance your investment experience with our company.

We look forward to the coming year and the many opportunities it will bring. We remain
dedicated to achieving growth and value as we continue to reach new heights. Thank you for
choosing to invest with us.

PORTFOLIC GROWTH »» W% 5

10 Residence Inn hotels acquired in 2001 Glade M. Knight
38 Residence Inn hotels acquired in 2002 Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
17 Homewood Suites hotels added by merger in 2003

1 Residence Inn hotel acquired in 2003
66 Total hotels with 7,869 suites in 25 states in 2003
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1 NAREIT Real Time Index: Constituent Companies and Relative Weights for March 1, 2003
http:/fwww.nareit.com/researchandstatistics/monthiylist.cfm



When seasoned mountain climbers
embark on their climb to the summit
of a mountain, they do so with careful
preparation. They know that making it
to the top requires mapping out the
right direction, possessing endurance,
working with others as a team and
arming themselves with the right tools.

&
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We are mountain climbers
at Apple Hospitality Two.
We know what it takes
to reach the summit,
and we are steadily
making our way there.



Residence Inn® by Marriott® Seattle—Redmond,

DIRECTION »»

Determining the safest, fastest and most
promising path to the crest of a mountain
must be done with careful consideration
before the journey begins. To arrive at the
final destination, a climber must proceed
in the right direction.
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Z/ \ \'t Apple Hospitality Two, our direction is derived from a strategic business

plan encompassing a carefully-crafted mission and clear objectives. Qur mission is simple:
to be a premier lodging real estate investment trust that consistently provides the highest
possible value for our shareholders. Our objectives support our mission: maximize share-
holder value, increase earnings per share, and safeguard future dividends. Our strategies
help us achieve these objectives:

» Select hotels located within markets that have growth potential and that have
stable and diversified economies

» Diversify assets among multiple locations and market types
» Invest in solid segments of the lodging industry, such as the extended-stay segment

* Choose hotels that are well-built and then improve and maintain them to
high standards of quality

» Affiliate with well-known brands and franchises
» Staff hotels with teams from the finest management companies

» Continually work with hotel management to ensure high profit levels

In 2002, Apple Hospitality added 38 hotels to its portfolio, growing it more than three
times its year-end 2001 size of 10 hotels. In March, we acquired a partnership containing
15 Residence Inn® by Marriott® hotels located within seven states. In August, we acquired
a partnership comprising 23 Residence Inns located within 20 states. The merger of Apple
Suites, Inc. with the company in January 2003 added 17 Homewood Suites” by Hilton
hotels and 1,922 suites. Also in January, the company purchased a Residence Inn in
Redmond, Washington containing 180 suites. Today, the company owns 66 hotels located
within 25 states and containing 7,869 suites. Apple Hospitality’s assets now total over
$734 million and our equity market capitalization equals $425 million, making the
company the fourth largest lodging REIT! by equity market capitalization and the largest
single owner of both the Homewood Suites® by Hilton and Residence Inn“ by Marriott”
brands. Indeed, we are reaching new heights.

1 NAREIT Real Time Index: Constituent Companies and Relative Weights for March 1, 2003 http://www.nareit.com/researchandstatistics/monthlylist.cfm




Residence Inn® by Marriott® Las Vegas, NV

ENDURANCE »»

Merely moving in the right direction doesn’t
guarantee a successful climb. Completing
the journey requires endurance to withstand
the elements and overcome the obstacles
encountered along the way. A climber must
have a relentless determination in order to
successfully reach the mountaintop.

APPLE HOSPITALITY TWO ANNUAL REPORT




iligent asset management is the hallmark of our operations. We continually
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monitor the performance of our hotels and our overall company operations to ensure
that we are reaching the highest possitle performance levels.

In 2002, our portfolio achieved an average daily rate (ADR) of $92 and our revenue per
available room (RevPAR) averaged $71. Our occupancy remained stable at 78 percent.
For the year, Funds from Operation (FFQ) per share totaled $1.26.

In contrast to the average returns of other lodging real estate investment trusts, our
company performed well. Shareholders received dividends at an annual rate of $1.00
per share, representing a 10 percent return based on a $10.00 share price. The average
dividend yield of lodging real estate investment trusts in 2002 was 4.31 percent,
according to the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts (NAREIT)
Composite REIT Index.

We believe that our ability to endure the recession and the tough operating environment
it has created for hotel companies has been due in part to our prudent asset management
and stable balance sheet. With the hotel industry slowly recovering, our hotel operations
have been streamlined to tighten expenses and reposition staffing in order to generate
higher profits without undermining customer service or sacrificing the quality of our
product. And we continue to capitalize on the moderate use of fixed-rate debt in order
to fulfill the cash flow needs of the company while providing shareholders with strong
returns over the long term.

In addition, our hotels are located near office parks, corgorate headquarters, airports
and other major facilities within markets driven by diverse industries and companies.
These markets offer environments less susceptible to economic downturns and should
help us endure recessionary periods.



Homewood Suites® by Hilton Philadeiphia, PA

TEAMWORK »»

The journey up a mountain is riskier when
climbed solo; therefore, a smart climber
treks with the company of a strong team.
By venturing with others who share a
common goal, the climb will be safer

and more successful.

APPLE HOSPITALITY TWO ANNUAL REPORT H 2002
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L - __anagement of the company is coordinated from our headquarters

in Richmond, Virginia where each team member is driven by a shared mission supported
by a strategic approach that assists the company in achieving positive results. Investor
Relations, Acquisitions and Dispositions, Asset Management, and Accounting work

together with the hotel management teams to help ensure peak performance of our hotels.
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HOMEWOOD SUTT
Hilton

Homewood Suites® by Hilton Atlanta~Buckhead, GA

TOOLS »»

Without the proper tools, the climber will
struggle to reach the summit. Axes, ropes
and anchors—these provide an advantage
along the mountain, and combined with
direction, endurance and teamwork, should

ensure a rise to the top.
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\gur tools at Apple Hospitality are our product and our brands. Our product is the upscale
extended-stay hotel. Designed to appeal to business and leisure travelers alike, our hotels offer
suites comfortably equipped with apartment-style amenities, including separate sleeping and
living areas, fully-furnished kitchens, business centers, swimming pools and whirlpools, fitness
centers, complimentary breakfast and a discount for stays of five or more nights. Offering great
value to its guests, the extended-stay product meets the demands of today’s travelers.

The extended-stay segment remains one of the most resilient in the lodging industry. According
to “The 2003 US Extended Stay Lodging Market” report issued by The Highland Group, an
Atlanta-based hotel consulting, research and appraisal firm, “Demand for extended-stay hotels
increased by two percent in 2002. This was more than double the rate of increase in overall US
hotel demand.” Extended-stay hotels offer less services and require fewer staff than full-service
hotels, so they usually have lower overhead and operating expenses. In tough economic times,
the ability of extended-stay hotels to operate on lower overhead can be a great advantage. Most
importantly, the long-term contracts secured with national and regional companies provide a
steady flow of extended-stay clients and a cushion during down times.

Apple Hospitality’s hotels are affiliated with the two leading upscale extended-stay hotel
brands, Residence Inn® by Marriott® and Homewood Suites” by Hilton. Both brands provide
our hotels with a powerful footing in the marketplace because of their trusted names,
national presence, high customer satisfaction and award-winning guest reward programs.

In 2002, the Homewood Suites® by Hilton brand was named the number one “Upscale
Extended-Stay” hotel chain by Business Travel News. This brand offers both a 100 percent
Customer Satisfaction Guarantee program and Hilton HHonors®, a guest reward program that
offers Double Dipping,” providing guests both hotel points and airline miles for the same stay.

In 2002, the Residence Inn® by Marriott® brand was ranked the highest extended-stay hotel
chain in customer satisfaction by J.D. Power and Associates’, and was ranked number one
in customer satisfaction among business travelers in the 2002 American Traveler Survey
conducted by NFO Plog Research?. Residence Inn’s high guest satisfaction can be attributed,
in part, to its Marriott Rewards® program, which reigns as the lodging industry’s largest
frequent guest program with over 18 million members worldwide. For the sixth consecutive
year, Marriott Rewards™ has received Business Traveler’ magazine’s “'Best Hotel Rewards
Program in the World”” award, as voted by the readers of the magazine.

e and Associates 2002 North America Hotel Guest Satisfaction Studys+. Study based on 12,940 individual evaluations. £ even extendedi-stay hotel chains were ranced in the stuay, v idpower.com

of the NFO Plog Research study are basad on surveys of 9,000 U.S. househelds, and hotel brands are ranked according to its Guest Satisfaction Index. For details on the NFO Piog Research survey, visit weawpiogresearch

ingsstravelerusa.com
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Beneficial Shareholders
11,636 at January 31, 2002

This annual report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of section 274 of the Securities Act of 199§, as amended, and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Such statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other faciors which may cause the actual
results, performarnce, or achievements of the company to be materially different from any results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward
looking statements. Such factors include: the availability and terms of financing; changes in national, regional and locat economies and business conditions; competitors
within the extended-stay hotel industry; the ability of the company to implement its acquisition strategy and operating strategy and to manage planned growth; and
the ability to repay or refinance debt as it becomes due. Although the company believes that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements contained
herein are reasonable, any of the assumptions could be inaccurate; therefore, there can be no assurance that such statements included in this annual report will
prove to be accurate, In fight of the significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking statements included herein, the inclusion of such information should
not be regarded as a representation by the company or any other person that the results or conditions described in such statements or the objectives and plans of

the company will he achieved.
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PART I

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. Such statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors which may
cause the actual results, performance, or achievements of the Company to be materially different from
future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements.
Such factors include the ability of the Company to implement its acquisition strategy and operating
strategy; the Company’s ability to manage planned growth; changes in economic cycles and competition
within the extended-stay hotel industry. Although the Company believes that the assumptions underlying
the forward-looking statements contained herein are reasonable, any of the assumptions could be
inaccurate, and therefore there can be no assurance that such statements included in this Annual Report
will prove to be accurate. In light of the significant uncertainties inherent in the forward-looking
statements included herein, the inclusion of such information should not be regarded as a representation
by the Company or any other person that the results or conditions described in such statements or the
objectives and plans of the Company will be achieved. In addition, the Company’s qualification as a real
estate investment trust involves the application of highly technical and complex provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code. Readers should carefully review the Company’s financial statements and the notes
thereto, as well as the risk factors described in the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Item 1. Business

Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. (the “Company”), a Virginia corporation, was formed on January 17, 2001,
with the first investor closing on May 1, 2001. Since our incorporation, we have raised approximately
$300 million in best efforts offerings of Units of the Company. Each Unit is equal to one common share
and one Series A preferred share of the Company. We have used the proceeds from our offerings to
purchase extended-stay hotels in select metropolitan areas throughout the United States. At December 31,
2002, we owned, either directly or through our subsidiaries, a total of 48 extended-stay hotels with 5,767
suites, located in 20 states.

We are a real estate investment trust. The REIT Modernization Act, effective January 1, 2001, permits
REIT’s to establish taxable businesses to conduct certain previously disallowed business activities. To
take advantage of these activities, we formed a wholly-owned taxable REIT subsidiary, Apple Hospitality
Management, Inc., and leased all of our hotels to Apple Hospitality Management or its subsidiaries. The
hotels are operated and managed by Residence Inn® by Marriott®, Inc. under hotel management
agreements.

Growth Strategies

Our primary objective is to enhance shareholder value by increasing funds from operations and cash
available for distributions. We focus on maximizing the internal growth of our portfolio by selecting
properties that have strong cash flow growth potential.

We seek to increase operating cash flow and enhance its value through internal growth, renovations and
acquisitions. Our internal growth strategy is to utilize our asset management expertise to improve the
quality of our hotels by renovating, redeveloping and thereby improving hotel revenue performance, and
to participate, through the master hotel lease agreements, in any growth in revenues at our hotels.




We believe that our planned future renovation and redevelopment activities will continue to increase
revenue per available room (“REVPAR”) growth at our hotels, thereby increasing our lease revenue. We
are committed to fund a minimum of 5% of gross revenue per month for certain capital expenditures for
periodic replacement or refurbishment of furniture, fixtures and equipment. We have $18,640,007 held in
escrow for the furniture, fixture and equipment reserve.

We believe that acquisition opportunities in upscale extended-stay hotel markets will continue.
Financing

All of our hotels are encumbered by mortgage debt. Our debt financing is detailed below:

) In conjunction with the hotel portfolio acquisition on September 7, 2001, we assumed a
$53 million mortgage note. The note bears a fixed interest rate of 8.08% per annum and
is secured by the 10 hotels acquired in the acquisition. The maturity date is January
2010, with a balloon payment of $35.4 million. The loan is payable in monthly
installments including principal and interest. At December 31, 2002, the balance of the
mortgage note was $51,277,768.

23 In conjunction with the hotel portfolio acquisition in the first quarter of 2002, we
assumed a $71 million promissory note at a fixed interest rate of 8.6% and a $21 million
promissory note at a fixed rate of 15.25%, which were secured by the 15 hotels acquired
in the acquisition. In September of 2002, these notes were refinanced in a transaction
that included paying approximately $89 million in balloon payments to terminate the
notes. The new secured note, which calls for two separate pools of loans with 10 loans in
one pool and 5 loans in the other, is in the amount of $83 million with a fixed interest rate
of 7.4% per annum. The note matures in October 2012 with an aggregate balloon
payment of approximately $67 million. The loan is payable in monthly installments
including principal and interest. At December 31, 2002, the balance of the mortgage note
was $82,824,292.

3 In conjunction with the hotel portfolio acquisition on August 28, 2002, we assumed a
mortgage note of approximately $131 million. The note bears interest in the amount of
8.85% per annum and is secured by the 23 hotels acquired in the acquisition. The note
matures in March 2006 with an aggregate balloon payment of approximately $122
million. The note is payable in monthly installments including principal and interest. At
December 31, 2002, the balance of the mortgage note was $130,046,120.

Competition

We believe that the hotel industry is highly competitive. Each of our hotels is located in a developed area
that includes other hotels and competes for guests primarily with other extended-stay hotels in our
immediate vicinity and secondarily with other hotels in our geographic market. An increase in the number
of competitive hotels in a particular area could have a material adverse effect on the occupancy, average
daily rate (“ADR”) and revenue per available room of our hotels in that area. We believe that brand
recognition, location, price and quality (of both the hotel and the services provided) are the principal
competitive factors affecting our hotels.




Hotel Operating Performance

The Company owned 48 Residence Inn® by Marriott® hotels, consisting of 5,767 suites, at December
31, 2002, and 10 Residence Inn® by Marriott® hotels, consisting of 1,150 suites at December 31, 2001.
Suite revenues for these hotels totaled $102,895,689 for the year ended December 31, 2002, and
$10,022,272 for the period September 7, 2001 through December 31, 2001. For those same periods, the
hotels achieved average occupancy of 78% and 76%, ADR of $92 and $102 and REVPAR of $71 and
$78, respectively. '

Property Taxes and Insurance

The Company maintains real estate tax escrows, funded from gross revenues of the hotels, which are used
to pay the costs of real estate and personal property taxes. Property insurance is also funded from gross
revenues. Taxes, insurance and other expenses incurred by the Company totaled $6,578,038 for the year
ended December 31, 2002 and $552,734 for the period January 17, 2001 through December 31, 2001.

Maintenance

The hotels have an ongoing need for renovation and refurbishment. Under various hotel lease
agreements, we must fund expenditures for periodic repairs, replacement or refurbishment of furniture,
fixtures and equipment for the hotels in an amount equal to a minimum of 5% of gross revenues. In
addition, other capital improvement projects are directly funded by us.

Employees

During 2002, all employees involved in the day-to-day operation of our hotels were employed by the
management company engaged pursuant to the hotel management agreement. During 2002, persons
working at the corporate headquarters on our behalf were employees of Apple Suites Advisors, Inc.
(GLASA”).

Environmental Matters

In connection with each of our hotel acquisitions, we obtain a Phase I Environmental Report and such
additional environmental reports and surveys as are necessitated by such preliminary report. Based on
such reports, we are not aware of any environmental situations requiring remediation at our properties,
which have not been or are not currently being remediated as necessary. No material remediation costs
have or are expected to occur.

Property Acquisitions in 2002
During fiscal year 2002, we acquired the following hotels:

(H In the first quarter of 2002, we acquired, through subsidiaries, Marriott Residence Inn Limited
Partnership, which owns 15 extended-stay hotels. For simplicity, this entity will be referred to as
the “Res I Partnership.” Although the acquisition was conducted through a merger in which our
subsidiaries acquired the Res I Partnership, the purpose and result was our acquisition of the
hotels. Each hotel operates as part of the Residence Inn® by Marriott® franchise system; and

2) On August 28, 2002, we acquired, through subsidiaries, Marriott Residence Inn II Limited
Partnership, which has direct or indirect ownership of 23 extended-stay hotels. For simplicity,
this entity will be referred to as the “Res II Partnership.” Although the acquisition was conducted




through a merger in which our subsidiaries acquired the Res I1 Partnership, the purpose and result
was our acquisition of the hotels. Fach hotel operates as part of the Residence Inn® by
Marriott® franchise system.

We entered into a merger agreement with Apple Suites on October 23, 2002. Effective January 31, 2003,
Apple Suites merged with and into Hospitality Acquisition Company, our wholly-owned subsidiary.
Apple Suites owned, either directly or through its subsidiaries, a total of 17 upper-end extended-stay
hotels throughout the United States, which comprised a total of 1,922 suites. For further information
about the merger, refer to our discussion of the merger under the “Subsequent Events” section of Item 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Item 2. Properties
Property Descriptions and Characteristics

As of December 31, 2002, we owned 48 Residence Inn® by Marriott® hotels comprising of 5,767 suites.
The hotels are located in 20 states. The following table includes the location of each hotel, the date of
construction, the date acquired, encumbrances, initial -acquisition cost, gross carrying value and the
number of suites of each hotel.
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Investment in hotels at December 31, 2002, consisted of the following:
The following is a reconciliation of the carrying amount of real estate owned:

Land $101,247,432
Building and improvements 275,291,573
Furniture fixtures and equipment 20,141,180

396,680,185
Less: accumulated depreciation (8.646.478)
Investment in hotels, net $ 388.033,707

For additional information about our properties, refer to Item 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Ttem 3. Legal Proceedings

We are not presently subject to any material litigation nor, to our knowledge, is any litigation threatened
against us or any of our properties, other than routine actions arising in the ordinary course of business,
some of which are expected to be covered by liability insurance and all of which collectively are not
expected to have a material adverse effect on our business or financial condition or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

PARTII
Item 5. Market For Registrant’s Commeon Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
Our board of directors has adopted and our shareholders have approved a Non-Employee Directors

Stock Option Plan and an Incentive Plan. The options issued under each plan convert to Units. Each
Unit is equal to one common share and one Series A preferred share of the Company.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

(a) (b) {c)

Number of securities
remaining available for

Weighted-average future issuance under
Number of securities to exercise price of equity compensation
be issued upon exercise outstanding options, plans (excluding
of outstanding options, warrants, securities reflected
Plan Category warrants and rights And rights in column (a))
Equity compensation
plans approved by 42,720 Units $9.76 1,749,531 Units
security holders... (1), (2)
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Equity compensation None Not applicable Not applicable
plans not approved by
security holders...

Total.................. 42,720 Units 1,749,531 Units

(1) The number of Units remaining available for future issuance under the Non-Employee Directors
Stock Option Plan is determined by the following formula: an aggregate of 45,000 Units plus 1.8%
of the total number of Units issued in excess of the outstanding Units of the Minimum Offering. The
defined terms have the definition as set forth in the Incentive Plan.

(2) The number of Units remaining available for future issuance under the Incentive Plan is determined
by the following formula: (1) 35,000 Units plus (2) 4.625% of the number of Units sold in the
Initial Offering in excess of the Minimum Offering plus (3) 4.4% of the total number of Units sold
in the Additional Offering, which shall be authorized, but not issued Units. The defined terms have
the definition as set forth in the Incentive Plan.

Common Shares
There is currently no established public market in which our common shares are traded.
On December 31, 2002, there were 9,765 beneficial shareholders of our common shares.

Distributions of $17,330,704 were paid to the shareholders during 2002, Distributions were declared at a
rate of $1.00 per share for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Preferred Shares

Our articles of incorporation authorize its issuance of up to 215,240,000 preferred shares. Of the
215,240,000 authorized preferred shares, 200,000,000 have been designated Series A preferred shares.

Series A Preferred Shares

The Series A preferred shares have no voting rights, no distribution rights, and no conversion rights. In
addition, the Series A preferred shares are not separately tradable from the common shares to which they
relate. The only right associated with each Series A preferred share is a priority distribution upon the
sale of the Company’s assets. The priority distribution will be equal to $10.00 per Series A preferred
share, and no more, before any distribution will be made to the holders of any other shares. Upon that
distribution, the Series A preferred shares will have no other distribution rights.

Our Offering

Our Registration Statement on Form S-11 (File No. 333-77055) was declared effective by the Securities
and Exchange Commission on May 1, 2001, and on that date we commenced an initial best efforts
offering of Units. On May 29, 2002, the initial offering closed. Our Registration Statement on Form S-
11 (File No. 333-101194) was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 2,
2002, and on that date we commenced our second best efforts offering of Units. On November 26, 2002,
the second offering closed. The managing underwriter was also David Lerner Associates, Inc. and all of
the Units were being sold for our account. Together our initial offering and our second offering are
referred to as our “Offerings”.




The following tables set forth information concerning the Offerings and the use of proceeds from the
sale of Units in the Offerings as of December 31, 2002:

Units registered under initial offering:

3,157,931 Units @ $ 9.50 per Unit § 30,000,000
17,000,000 Units @ $10.00 per Unit 170,000,000

Totals: 20.157.931 Units $ 200,000,000
Units registered under second offering:

10,000,000 Units @ $10.00 per Unit § 100,000,000
Units sold:

3,157,895 Units @ $ 9.50 per Unit $ 30,000,000
27.090.036 Units @ $10.00 per Unit 270,000,360

Totals: 30,157,931 Units $ 300,000,360

Expenses of Issuance and Distribution of Units

1. Underwriting discounts and commissions $ 30,000,036
2. Expenses of underwriters
3. Direct or indirect payments to directors or officers
of the Company or their associates, to ten percent
shareholders, or to affiliates of the Company
4. Fees and expenses of third parties 1.868.976

Total Expenses of Issuance and Distribution of

Units 31,869,012
Net Proceeds to the Company $ 268,131,348
1. Purchase of real estate (including repayment of
indebtedness incurred to purchase real estate) $130,205,075
2. Interest on indebtedness 14,499,894
3.  Working capital 113,867,251
4,  Fees to the following (all affiliates of officers of
the Company):
a. Apple Suites Advisors, Inc. 725,520
b. Apple Suites Realty Group, Inc. 8,246,784
5. Fees and expenses of third parties: -
a. Legal 304,270
b. Accounting 282.554
Total of Application of Net Proceeds to the Company $ 268,131,348
-8-




Subsequent Acquisition

Effective January 3, 2003, we acquired a Residence Inn® by Marriott® hotel in Redmond, Washington,
which contains 280 suites and was in operation when acquired. The hotel offers one and two room suites
with the amenities generally offered by upscale extended-stay hotels. It is located in a developed area
near Seattle, Washington.

The gross purchase price for the hotel was $32,550,000. This amount was satisfied at closing by cash
payments and other adjustments in the approximate amount of $12,550,000 and the assumption of
existing secured debt.

AHT Redmond, Inc., which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and which was formed to
acquire the hotel, has assumed existing debt secured by the hotel. The lender is Wells Fargo Bank
Minnesota, National Association, as Trustee for the registered holders of GMAC Commercial Mortgage
Securities, Inc., Mortgage Pass Through Certificates, Series 2002-C3, as serviced by GMAC
Commercial Mortgage Corporation.

The principal balance of the assumed debt as of the closing date was approximately $20,000,000. The
debt is evidenced by a 8.375% promissory note, dated November 28, 2000, in the original principal
amount of $20,500,000. The promissory note provides for a maturity date of December 1, 2025.




Selected Financial Data

Item 6.

APPLE HOSPITALITY TWQ, INC.
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Year ended

Year ended
December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001 (b)

Revenues:
Suite revenue $ 102,895,689 3 10,022,272
Interest income and other revenue 4,617,040 2,419,490
Total revenue $ 107,512,729 $ 12,441,771
Expenses:
Hotel expenses $ 59,161,107 $ 5,624,836
Taxes, insurance and other 6,578,038 552,734
General and administrative 1,943,257 491,009
Depreciation 7,561,545 1,084,933
Interest and other expenses 13.128.354 1,371,540
Total expenses 88,372,301 9,125,052
Net income 19,140,428 3,316,719
Extraordinary item 273.789 --
Net income after extraordinary item $ 18,866,639 $ 3,316,719
Weighted-average common shares outstanding — basic 21,557,041 6,334,168
Balance Sheet Data ’
Cash and cash equivalents $ 125,521,805 $ 15,468,841
Investment in hotels, net 388,033,707 121,078,235
Total assets 557,754,100 178,381,287
Notes payable — secured 269,296,791 52,874,346
Shareholders’ equity 262,981,700 120,460,971
Other Data
Cash flow from:

Operating activities $ 24,002,069 $ 4,694,360

Investing activities $ (28,256,546) $ (108,918,125)

Financing activities $ 114,307,441 $ 119,692,506
Number of hotels owned at end of period 48 10
Number of hotel suites owned at year-end 5,767 1,150
Funds From Operations Calculation
Net income before extraordinary items $ 19,140,428 $ 3,316,719

Depreciation of real estate 7,561,545 1,084,933

Other 450,000 1,600
Funds from operations (a) $ 27,151,973 $ 4,403,252

(a) Funds from operations (“FFQO”) is defined as net income (computed in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles — GAAP) excluding gains and losses from sales of depreciable property, plus depreciation
of real estate, certain start-up costs, and other various costs. In 2002, these costs consisted entirely of imputed
interest expense related to the acquisition of Res I Partnership in the first quarter. We consider evaluating property
acquisitions and our operating performance and believe that FFO should be considered along with, but not as an
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alternative to, net income and cash flows as a measure of our activities in accordance with GAAP and
is not necessarily indicative of cash available to fund cash needs.

(b) We were initially capitalized on January 17, 2001; however, operations did not commence until
September 7, 2001.

The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and related notes
of the Company included under Item 8 of this report.

{tem 7. Management’s Discussicn and Analysis of Financial Condition And Results of
Operations

General

We are a real estate investment trust (“REIT™) that owns upper-end, extended-stay hotels. We were
formed on January 17, 2001, with the first investor closing commencing on May 1, 2001.

We own forty-eight hotels, with a total of 5,767 suites. We acquired ten of the hotels in September 2001

from Crestline Capital Corporation and certain of its subsidiaries. The following table summarizes the
locations of and number of suites at these ten hotels (collectively, the “Crestline Portfolio”):
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Location of hotels

# of Suites

Location of hotels

#of Suites

Montgomery, Alabama
Bakersfield, California
Concord, California
San Ramon, California
Meriden, Connecticut

Fifteen of our hotels were acquired effective February 22, 2002, in a transaction described below under
“Recent Acquisition-Res I Portfolio.” The following table summarizes the location of and number of
suites at these fifteen hotels (the “Res I Portfolio™):

Location of hotels

%4

114
126
106
106

# of Suites

Atlanta/Hapeville, Georgia
Boston, Massachusetts
Cincinnati, Chio

Dallas, Texas

Houston, Texas

Total

Location of hotels

126
130
118
120

110

1,150

# of Suites

Costa Mesa, California 144 Southfield, Michigan 144
La Jjolla, California 288 Chesterfield, Missouri 104
Long Beach, California 216 St. Louis-Galleria, Missouri 152
Boulder, Colorado 128 Cincinnati, Chio 144
Atlanta-Buckhead, Georgia 136 Columbus, Chio 96
Atlanta-Cumberland, Georgia 130 Dayton-North, Ghio 64
Atlanta-Dunwoody, Georgia 144 Dayton-South, Ohio _96
Chicago, llinois 144 Total 2,130

Our remaining twenty-three hotels were acquired in August 2002, in a transaction described below under
“Recent Acquisitions during 2002”. The following table summarizes the location of and number of suites
at these twenty-three hotels (the “Res IT Portfolio™):

Location of hotels # of Suites Location of hotels # of Suites
Akron, Chio 112 Kalamazoo, Michigan 83
Arcadia, California 120 Las Vegas, Nevada 192
Birmingham, Alabama 128 Lubbock, Texas 80
Boca Raton, Florida 120 Memphis, Tennessee 105
Boston, Massachusetts 96 Pensacola, Florida 64
Charlotte, North Carolina 91 Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 88
Chicago-Deerfield, Illinois 128 St. Petersburg, Florida 88
Placentia, California 112 Santa Fe, New Mexico 120
Columbia, South Carolina 128 Shreveport, Louisiana 72
Greensboro, North Carolina 128 Spartanburg, South Carolina  _ 88
Irvine, California 112 Total 2,487
Jackson, Mississippi 120

Jacksonville, Florida 112

As of December 31, 2002, we were externally-advised and had contracted with ASA to manage our day-
to-day operations and make investment decisions. Concurrent with our merger with Apple Suites on
January 31, 2003, our advisory agreement with ASA was terminated and no further advisory fees were
due under that agreement.
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As of December 31, 2002, we had contracted with ASRG to provide brokerage services for the
acquisition and disposition of our real estate assets. In accordance with the contract, ASRG is paid a fee
of 2% of the gross purchase price of any acquisitions or gross sale price of any dispositions of real estate
investments, subject to certain conditions. For the year ended December 31, 2002 and the period January
17, 2001 through December 31, 2001, ASRG earned $5,866,784 and $2,380,000, respectively, under this
agreement. ASRG is owned by Mr. Glade M. Knight, our Chairman. Concurrent with our merger with
Apple Suites on January 31, 2003, our agreement with ASRG was terminated.

Recent Acquisitions during 2002

Recent Acquisition — Res I Portfolio

During the first quarter of 2002, we acquired, through subsidiaries, Marriott Residence Inn Limited
Partnership, which owns fifteen (15) extended-stay hotels. For simplicity, this entity will be referred to
as the “Res I Partnership.” Although the acquisition was conducted through a merger in which our
subsidiaries acquired the Res I Partnership, the purpose and result was acquisition of the hotels. Each
hotel operates as part of the Residence Inn® by Marriott® franchise system.

The gross purchase price for the acquisition was approximately $133.4 million. The purchase price, as
adjusted at closing, was paid through a combination of transactions. In November 2001, we made a
deposit of $35 million, which was applied toward the purchase price at closing. In addition, we made a
cash payment of approximately $7 million at closing. To satisfy the remainder of the purchase price, we
received a credit at closing equal to the unpaid balance of existing loans, which were secured by the
hotels. These secured loans have been subsequently refinanced and are an obligation of the Res I
Partnership. We also used the proceeds of our offerings to pay 2% of the total gross purchase price,
which equals 82,667,052, as a commission to ASRG.

Further details about the refinance are provided under “Notes Payable” in Note 3 of the “Notes to
Financial Statements” in [tem 8.

Recent Acquisition — Res IT Portfolio

On August 28, 2002, we acquired, through subsidiaries, Marriott Residence Inn II Limited Partnership,
which has direct or indirect ownership of 23 extended-stay hotels. For simplicity, this entity will be
referred to as the “Res II Partnership.” Although the acquisition was conducted through a merger in
which our subsidiaries acquired the Res II Partnership, the purpose and result was our acquisition of the
hotels. Each hotel operates as part of the Residence Inn® by Marriott® franchise system.

The purchase price for the acquisition was approximately $136 million, net of cash acquired of $24
million. The purchase price, as subject to certain adjustments at closing, was satisfied through a
combination of transactions. They included the assumption of the existing loan in the approximate
amount of $132 million (representing outstanding principal and interest as of August 31, 2002), which is
secured by the hotels owned directly by the Res II Partnership, together with a cash payment for the net
balance of the purchase price (after credit for a deposit of $3 million, with interest, and certain other cash
balances). The source for the cash payment was our second offering of Units, plus funds raised in our
initial offering, which ended as of May 29, 2002.

The secured loan continues to be an obligation of the Res I Partnership.

We also used the proceeds of our Offerings to pay 2% of the total base purchase price, which equals
$3,199,732, as a commission to ASRG.
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Further details about the secured loans are provided in Note 3 to “Notes to the Financial Statements” in
ftem 8.

Related Party Transactions

We have significant iransactions with related parties. These transactions cannot be construed to be arms-
length and the results of our operations may be different if these transactions were conducted with non-
related parties.

As of December 31, 2002, we had contracted with ASRG to provide brokerage services for the
acquisition and disposition of our real estate assets. In accordance with the contract, ASRG is paid a fee
of 2% of the gross purchase price of any acquisitions or gross sale price of any dispositions of real estate
investments, subject to certain conditions. For the year ended December 31, 2002 and the period January
17, 2001 through December 31, 2001, ASRG earned $5,866,784 and $2,380,000, respectively, under this
agreement. ASRG is owned by Mr. Glade M. Knight, our Chairman. Concurrent with our merger with
Apple Suites on January 31, 2003, our agreement with ASRG was terminated.

As of December 31, 2002, we had contracted with ASA to advise and provide us day-to-day
management services and due diligence services on acquisitions. In accordance with the contract, we
paid ASA a fee equal to 0.1% to 0.25% of total equity contributions we received in addition to certain
reimbursable expenses. For the year ended December 31, 2002 and the period January 17, 2061 through
December 31, 2001, ASA earned $568,170 and $157,350, respectively, under this agreement.
Concurrent with our merger with Apple Suites on January 31, 2003, our advisory agreement with ASA
was terminated and no further advisory fees were due under that agreement. To implement the
termination of the advisory agreement, we purchased ASA. We acquired all of Mr. Glade M. Knight's
stock in ASA instead of paying a $6.48 million termination fee due ASA under the advisory agreement.
Mr. Knight received a cash payment of $2 million and a non-interest-bearing promissory note, due four
years after the merger, in a principal amount of $4.48 million. Also in connection with our merger and
the termination of the advisory agreement with ASA, our outstanding Series B convertible preferred
shares were exchanged for 1,272,000 newly created Series C convertible preferred shares which have the
same voting and dividend rights as if they had already been converted into 1,272,000 commeon shares.

Mr. Knight also serves as the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Cornerstone Realty Income
Trust, Inc., an apartment REIT. Mr. Knight was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Apple Suites
prior to our merger with it. (Refer to the Subsequent Events section of Item 7. Management’s
Discussion and Analysis for further information about the merger with Apple Suites).

Apple Suites issued 240,000 Class B convertible preferred shares, consisting of 202,500 shares to Mr.
Knight, and a combined 37,500 Class B convertible preferred shares to two other individuals. Apple
Suites issued the Class B convertible preferred shares before the initial closing of its minimum offering
of $30,000,000, in exchange for payment of $0.10 per Class B convertible preferred share, or an
aggregate of $24,000. In January 2003, our shareholders and the shareholders of Apple Suites approved
our acquisition of Apple Suites (see Note 12 to the Notes to Financial Statements). In connection with
this merger, all of the Apple Suites 240,000 Class B convertible preferred shares converted to 480,000
common shares of the Company. We will recognize expense in our [ncome Statement in the first quarter
of 2003 related to this conversion.

Incentive Management Fees

Our hotels are subject to management agreements under which Residence Inn® by Marriott®, Inc. (the
“Manager”) manages the Company’s hotels, generally for an initial term of 15 to 20 years with renewal
terms at the option of the Manager of up to an additional 50 years. The agreements generally provide for
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payment of base management fees, which are calculated annually and are generally 3% of sales, and
incentive management fees, which are generally equal to 15% to 20% of operating profit (as defined in
the management agreements) over a priority return (as defined in the management agreements) to the
Company. Incentive fees are payable only to the extent of cash flow from the properties as described in
the management agreement on a portfolio basis. We have three portfolios with separate incentive
management agreements which are subject to this calculation. We record incentive management fee
exposure when it is considered probable that these fees will be paid. See “Expenses” under Results of
Operations below for further discussion.

Results of Operations
Revenues

Our principal source of revenue is hotel suite revenue. For the year ended December 31, 2002 and the
period September 7, 2001 through December 31, 2001, we had suite revenue and other revenue of
$102,895,689 and $10,022,272, and $3,324,115 and $414,493, respectively. The increase in revenues is
attributable to the acquisitions of 38 hotels in 2002, as well as the full year of operations of the ten
properties acquired in 2001. For those same periods, the hotels achieved average occupancy of 78% and
76%, ADR of $§92 and $102 and REVPAR of §71 and $78, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2002 and the period January 17, 2001 through December 31, 2001, we
bad interest income of $1,292,925 and $2,005,006, respectively. Interest income for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2002 represents excess cash, invested in short term money market instruments;
whereas interest income for the period January 17, 2001 through December 31, 2001 represents excess
cash, invested in short term money market instruments and interest earned from the 12% promissory
note with Crestline Capital Corporation.

Expenses

Interest expense was $13,128,354 and $1,371,540, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2002
and the period January 17, 2001 through December 31, 2001. Interest expense for the year ended
December 31, 2002, represents interest on the 8.08%, $53 million promissory note assumed in
conjunction with the Crestline acquisition, interest expense on the 8.6%, $71 million promissory note
and 15.25%, $21 million promissory note assumed in conjunction with the Res I Partnership acquisition,
interest expense on the refinance of the Res I Partnership acquisition debt in the amount of $83 million at
a fixed interest rate of 7.4%, and interest expense on the 8.85%, $130 million promissory note assumed
in conjunction with the Res II Partnership acquisition. Interest expense for the period January 17, 2001
through December 31, 2001 represents interest on the 8.08% $53 million promissory note.

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2002 and the period January 17, 2001 through
December 31, 2001 was $7,561,545 and $1,084,933, respectively. Depreciation expense for 2002
represents expense of our 48 hotels and related personal property, and expense for 2001 represents
expense of the 10 hotels and related personal property for September 7, 2001 through December 31,
2002.

Taxes, insurance and other expense for the year ended December 31, 2002 and the period January 17,
2001 through December 31, 2001 was $6,578,038 or 6% of our suite revenue and $552,734 or 6% of our
suite revenue, respectively.

General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2002 and for the period January

17, 2001 through December 31, 2001 were $1,943,257 or 2% of our suite revenue and $491,009 or 5%
of our suite revenue, respectively. This percentage decreased as our asset base grew during 2002.
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Hotel operating expenses totaled $24,816,733 or 24% of our suite revenue and $2,262,543 or 23% of our
suite revenue for the year ended December 31, 2002 and the period January 17, 2001 through December
31, 2001, respectively.

Our hotels are subject to management agreements under which the Manager manages our hotels,
generally for an initial term of 15 to 20 years with renewal terms at the option of the Manager of up to an
additional 50 years. The agreements generally provide for payment of base management fees, which are
calculated annually and are generally 3% of sales, and incentive management fees, which are generally
equal to 15% to 20% of operating profit (as defined in the management agreements) over a priority
return {as defined in the management agreements) to us. Total incentive management fees may not
exceed 20% of cumulative operating profit, or 20% of current year operating profit. Incentive
management fees are currently payable only if and to the extent there is sufficient cash flow from the
hotels after consideration of qualifying debt service and after consideration to a priority return on
investment, including property improvements. Amounts not cutrently payable are deferred and are
payable in future years only if and to the extent there is sufficient cash flow from future operations or
upon sale or refinancing of the hotels after consideration to a priority return to us (as defined in the
management agreements), which is generally 12%. In the event of early termination of the management
agreements, the Manager will receive additional fees based on the unexpired term and expected future
base and incentive management fees. We have the option to terminate the management agreements if
specified performance thresholds are not satisfied.

Incentive fees are payable on a portfolio by portfolio basis. We have three portfolios with separate
management agreements which are subject to this calculation. We record incentive management fee
exposure when it is considered probable that these fees will be paid. We have recorded the full amount
of deferred incentive management fees on the Res III portfolio. We have not recorded any deferred
incentive management fees for the Res T and Res II portfolios.

We have acquired our hotels in three separate transactions, (“Res I” — purchased February 2002, “Res 117
— purchased August 28, 2002, and “Res III” — purchased September 2001). In the Res I and Res II
purchases, we assumed the amended and restated management agreements in effect with the Manager by
the prior owner and we assumed deferred incentive management fees totaling $6.7 million and $7.0
million, respectively, at the date of the respective acquisitions. Additionally, we assumed the cost basis
of $187 and $243 million for Res T and Res II, respectively, and the holding period of the prior owner for
purposes of calculating the priority refurns upon sale of the properties. We paid approximately $132 and
$161 million for Res I and Res II, respectively.

The following table summarizes deferred incentive management fees (“DIMF”) under these management
agreements (dollars in millions).

IMF 2002 Amount accrued
DIMF Accumulated Total IMF Total 1n Consolidated
Assumed Post-Acquisition  IMF Paid DIMF  Balance Sheet
Res 1 $ 6.7 $2.4 $95 $0 $ 95 $0
Res I 7.0 9 7.9 0 7.9 0
Res 111 0 1.2 1.2 5 i i
Total $13.7 $4.5 $18.6 $.5 $18.1 $.7

No amounts of DIMF were recorded upon the acquisition of Res I and Res II as the fair value of these
amounts were not readily determinable and payment was not considered probable.

Pursuant to the terms of the management agreements, the Manager also furnishes the hotels with certain
chain services which are generally provided on a central or regional basis to ali hotels in the Marriott
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International hotel system. Chain services include central training, advertising and promotion, a national
reservation system, computerized payroll and accounting services, and such additional services as
needed which may be more efficiently performed on a centralized basis. Costs and expenses incurred in
providing such services are allocated among all domestic hotels managed, owned or leased by Marriott
International or its subsidiaries on a fair and equitable basis. In addition, our hotels participate in the
Marriott Rewards program. The cost of this program is charged to all hotels in the Marriott International
hotel system.

The lessees are obligated to provide the Manager with sufficient funds, generally 5% of revenue, to
cover the cost of replacements and renewals to the hotels’ property and improvements. Under certain
circumstances, the lessees will be required to establish escrow accounts for such purposes under terms
outlined in the agreements. To the extent the lessees are not required to fund such amounts into escrow
accounts, the lessees remain liable to make such fundings in the future. The lessees are obligated under
these management agreements to fund FF&E requirements in excess of amounts placed in restricted cash
accounts, which as of December 31 had aggregate balances of $18.6 million.

In addition to management fees, we also pay each hotels’ pro rata share of the Manager’s actual costs
and expenses incurred in providing certain chain services on a central or regional basis to all the hotels
operated by the Manager or other Marriott affiliate. Chain services include central training and
development; computerized payroll and accounting services; and such additional central or regional
services performed on a centralized basis. For the year ended December 31, 2002, and for the period
January 17, 2001 through December 31, 2001, we had incurred $1,736,168 and $233,643, respectively,
in chain services.

The management agreements also provide for payments of costs associated with certain system-wide
advertising, promotional and public relations materials and programs and the operational costs of
reservation systems. Each hotel pays two and one-half percent (2.5%) of suite revenues to this
marketing fund. For the year ended December 31, 2002 and the period January 17, 2001 through
December 31, 2001, we had incurred $2,572,393 and $250,557, respectively, in marketing fees.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents totaled $125,521,805 at December 31, 2002, as compared to 15,468,341 at
December 31, 2001. We plan to use this cash for future acquisition costs, renovations, distributions to
shareholders and debt service and to fund general corporate expenses.

Equity

From the initial closing, through the period ended December 31, 2002, we sold 30,157,931 Units
(3,157,895 units at $9.50 per Unit and 27,000,036 Units at $10 per Unit) to our investors, including
Units sold through the reinvestment of distributions. The total gross proceeds from the Units sold were
$300,000,360 which netted us $268,131,348 after the payment of selling commissions and other offering
costs.

We are committed, under our management agreements, to fund 5% of gross revenues for capital
expenditures to include periodic replacement or refurbishment of furniture, fixtures and equipment. For
the twelve months ended December 31, 2002, $18,640,0607 was held by the Manager for furniture,
fixtures and equipment reserve.
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Notes payable

Res I Portfolio

The Res I Partnership, which we acquired through subsidiaries in connection with the Res I Portfolio,
was the borrower under secured loans from two lenders (with one being the senior lender and the other
being the subordinate lender). The senior lender was LaSalle Bank National Association as Trustee for
Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Series 1996-2. The senior lender held separate loans for each hotel
in the aggregate original principal amount of $100 million. Each loan held by the senior lender is
secured by a first mortgage on the hotel involved and by a related first priority security interest in the
rents, revenues and other personal property of such hotel. At acquisition, the aggregate unpaid principal
balance of these senior loans was $70,868,403. Each senior loan bore interest at an annual rate of 8.60%
and had a maturity date of September 30, 2002. The aggregate monthly payment under the senior loans
was $874,163. The loan was repaid in full at maturity from proceeds of the Offering and the refinancing.
The subordinate lender is LaSalle Bank National Association, as Indenture Trustee for Benefit of the
holders of iStar Asset Receivables Trust Collateralized Mortgage Bonds Series 2000-1. The subordinate
lender held a loan in the original principal amount of $30 million. The subordinate loan was secured by
a subordinate mortgage on the hotels and by related second priority security interests in the rents,
revenues and other personal property of the hotels. At acquisition, the unpaid principal balance of the
subordinate loan was $20,734,191. The subordinate loan bore interest at an annual rate of 15.25% and
required monthly payments of $400,590. The maturity date was September 30, 2002. The loan was
repaid in full at maturity from proceeds of the Offering and the refinancing.

On September 20, 2002, we refinanced the aforementioned secured loans. Upon closing, we paid
approximately $89 million in balloon payments, with approximately $69 million paid to the senior lender
and approximately $20 million paid to the subordinate lender in order to terminate the loans. The new
secured note calls for two separate pools of loans with 10 loans in one pool and 5 loans in the other. The
term of the note is 10 years with a 25 year amortization. The rate is 7.4% per annum and payments are
made in monthly installments, including principal and interest. The loans mature in October 2012 with
an aggregate balloon payment of approximately $67 million due at closing. On December 31, 2002, the
unpaid principal balance was $82,824,292.

Res Il Portfolio

Effective August 28, 2002, we acquired from Host Corporation and certain subsidiaries, twenty-three
hotels, and in conjunction with the acquisition, assumed a mortgage note of approximately $132 million.
The note bears interest in the amount of 8.85% per annum and matures in March 2006 with an aggregate
balloon payment of approximately $122 million. The note is payable in monthly installments, including
principal and interest. On December 31, 2002, the unpaid principal balance was $130,046,120.

Crestline Portfolio ~ Res Il

In conjunction with our 2001 acquisitions of the Crestline portfolio, we assumed a $53 million
promissory note. The note bears a fixed interest rate of 8.08% per annum and is secured by the 10
hotels. The maturity date is January 2010, with a balloon payment of $35.4 million. The loan is payable
in monthly installments, including principal and interest. On December 31, 2002, the unpaid principal
balance was $51,277,768.

Lease commitments

We and our subsidiaries lease certain equipment. The leases generally provide for the lessee to pay
taxes, maintenance, insurance and certain other operating costs of the leased property. The leases on
most of the properties contain renewal options.

-i8-




Following is a summary of future minimum payments that have initial or remaining non-cancelable lease
terms subsequent to December 31, 2002:

Year Total
2003 $559,205
2004 288,459
2005 39,195
2006 31,574
2007 8,043
Total minimum lease payments $926,476
Less: imputed interest (65,624)
$860,852

Capital requirements

Our dividend distribution policy is at the discretion of the board of directors and depends on several
factors. The distribution for the year ended December 31, 2002 was at a rate of $1.00 per unit
outstanding.

In January 2003, we declared a special dividend related to the acquisition of Apple Suites, of $0.497 per
share to shareholders of record on January 20, 2003. The dividend, which approximated $15 million,
was paid on February 3, 2003. '

In general, we expect capital resources to be adequate to meet our cash requirements in 2002.

We have ongoing capital commitments to fund our capital improvements. Through the lessee, we are
required, under all three management agreements with the Manager, to make available to the lessee, for
the repair, replacement, refurbishing of furniture, fixtures, and equipment, an amount of 5% of gross
revenues provided that such amount may be used for our capital expenditures with respect to the hotels.
We expect that this amount will be adequate to fund required repair, replacement, and refurbishments
and to maintain our hotels in a competitive condition.

It is anticipated that revenues generated from hotels and equity funds will be used to meet normal hotel
operating expenses, make principal payments on the notes assumed with the 2001 and 2002 acquisitions,
and make payment of distributions.

Market Risk Disclosure

Our market risk is exposure to changes in mortgage interest rates related to the assumption of the
mortgage note and interest rates on short-term investments. The interest rate of the debt related to the
Res III portfolio, Res II portfolio and Res I portfolio is 8.08%, 8.85%, and 7.4%, respectively. If market
interest rates for fixed-rate debt were 100 basis points higher at December 31, 2002, the fair value of the
fixed-rate debt for the Res 1II portfolio, Res II portfolio and Res I portfolio would have decreased from
$51.2 million to $49.0 million, $135 million to $132 million, and $82.8 million to $78.1 million,
respectively. If market interest rates for fixed-rate debt were 100 basis points lower at December 31,
2002, the fair value of the fixed-rate debt for the Res III portfolio, Res II portfolio and Res I portfolio
would have increased from $51.2 million to $53.9 million, $135 million to $139 million and $82.8
million to $89.2 million, respectively. We invested proceeds from our “best efforts” offering in short-
term money market investments pending acquisitions. If short-term market interest rates had been 100
basis points higher on average during 2002, the interest income would have increased by approximately
$65,000. If short-term market interest rates had been 100 basis points lower on average during 2002, the
investment income would have decreased by approximately $65,000. We intend to invest this money in
real estate assets as suitable opportunities arise.
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Impact of inflation

Operators of hotels, in general, possess the ability to adjust room rates daily to reflect the effects of
inflation. Competitive pressures may, however, limit the operators’ ability to raise room rates.
Currently we are not experiencing any material impact from inflation.

Seasonality

The hotel industry historically has been seasonal in nature, reflecting higher occupancy rates primarily
during the first three quarters of the year. Seasonal variations in occupancy at our hotels may cause

quarterly fluctuations in our revenues, particularly during the fourth quarter. To the extent that cash flow
from operations is insufficient during any quarter, due to temporary or seasonal fluctuations in revenue,
we expect to utilize cash on hand to make distributions.

We believe our liquidity and capital resources are adequate to meet our cash requirements for the
foreseeable future.

Critical Accounting Policies

The following contains a discussion of what we believe to be critical accounting policies. These items
should be read to gain a further understanding of the principals used to prepare our consolidated
financial statements. These principles include application of judgment; therefore, changes in judgments

may have a significant impact on our reported results of operations and financial condition.

Capitalization Policy

We consider expenditures to be capital in nature based on the following criteria: (1) for a single asset,
the cost must be at least $300, including all normal and necessary costs to place the asset in service, and
the useful life must be at least one year; (2) for group purchases of 10 or more identical assets, the unit
cost for each asset must be at least $50, with the aggregate cost of the group purchase being at least
$750, including all normal and necessary costs to place the asset in service, and the useful life must be at
least one year; and (3) for major repairs to buildings, furniture, fixtures and equipment, the repair must
be at least $2,000, and the useful life of the asset must be substantially extended. Capitalized
expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2002 and the period September 7, 2001 through
December 31, 2001 were $5,591,354 and $783,168, respectively.

Most repair costs are considered routine repair and replacement costs and are expensed as incurred to
hotel operating expenses. For the year ended December 31, 2002 and the period September 7, 2001
through December 31, 2001, we incurred $3,026,521 and $280,361, respectively, in repair and
replacement expense.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement for Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141,
“Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Cther Intangibles,” effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2001. Under new rules, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to
have indefinite lives will no longer be amortized but will be subject to annual impairment tests in
accordance with the Statements. Other intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their useful
lives. We adopted these new accounting standards beginning the first quarter of fiscal 2002. The
adoption of these standards will not have a material impact on our financial statements.
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In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets”. The Statement supercedes Statement 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-
Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of”, and APB Opinion No.30, “Reporting the
Results of Operations—Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions”, for segments of a business
to be disposed of. SFAS No. 144 retains the requirements of Statement 121 relating to recognition and
measurement of an impairment loss and resolves certain implementation issues resulting from Statement
121. This statement became effective January 1, 2002. The adoption of this statement did not have a
material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In April 2002, the FASB issued Statement 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Correction” (“SFAS No. 145”). Statement 4,
“Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt” (“SFAS No. 4”), required that gains and
losses from the extinguishment of debt that were included in the determination of net income be
aggregated and, if material, classified as an extraordinary item. Apple Hospitality reported the early
extinguishment of the Res I debt as an extraordinary item for 2002. The provisions of SFAS No. 145
related to the rescission of SFAS No. 4 will require the Company to reclassify prior period items into
continuing operations, including those recorded in the current period, that do not meet the extraordinary
classification. Additionally, future gains and losses related to debt extinguishment may be required to be
classified in income from continuing operations. The provisions of SFAS No. 145 related to the
rescission of SFAS No. 4 became effective in fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002. The Company,
from time to time, incurs such charges and is currently assessing the impact that this statement will have
on its consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Subsequent Events

Merger with Apple Suites, Inc.

We also entered into a merger agreement with Apple Suites on October 23, 2002. Effective January 31,
2003, Apple Suites merged with and into Hospitality Acquisition Company, our wholly-owned
subsidiary. Apple Suites owned, either directly or through its subsidiaries, a total of 17 upper-end
extended-stay hotels throughout the United States, which comprised a total of 1,922 suites. The merger
did not change the management positions Mr. Glade M. Knight held with us prior to the merger nor did
our boards of directors change as a result of the merger.

Pursuant to the merger, each Apple Suites common share, issued and outstanding immediately prior to
the effective date of the merger, was converted into the right to receive either: (i) one Unit of the
Company, consisting of one common share of the Company and one Series A preferred share of the
Company; or (ii) if the holder of a Apple Suites common share elected, $10.00 in cash, subject to a limit
on the total amount of cash to be paid in the merger. As a result of the merger, holders of Apple Suites
common shares received a total of 10,883,544 Units and approximately $17.8 million in cash, and the
Company assumed Apple Suites’ liability and paid certain merger costs. We funded the cash portion of
the merger consideration with available cash.

In addition, each Apple Suites Class B convertible share owned by Mr. Knight and two other individuals,
issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the merger, was converted into Units.
As a result, holders of Apple Suites Class B convertible shares received a total of 480,000 Units in the
Merger. Apple Suites will recognize expense of approximately $3.8 million in its Income Statement in
the first quarter of 2003 related to this conversion.
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Also in connection with this transaction, the Company terminated its advisory contract with ASA and
became self-advised. To implement the termination of the advisory agreement, we purchased ASA. We
acquired all of Mr. Glade M. Knight's stock in ASA instead of paying a $6.48 million termination fee
due ASA under the advisory agreement. Mr. Knight received a cash payment of $2 million and a non-
interest-bearing promissory note, due four years after the merger, in a principal amount of $4.48 million.
The Company will recognize an expense related to this transaction in the first quarter of 2003.

In addition, 1,272,000 newly created Series C convertible preferred shares were issued in exchange for
outstanding Series B convertible preferred shares. Holders of Series B convertible preferred shares
would have otherwise been entitled to receive 1,272,000 Units upon conversion of their Series B
convertible preferred shares in connection with the termination of the advisory agreement with ASA and
termination of the brokerage service agreement with ASRG. The new Series C convertible preferred
shares have a liquidation preference comparable to the Series B convertible preferred shares, in that
holders of Series C convertible preferred shares receive no payments in a liquidation for their Series C
convertible preferred shares until holders of Units are paid in full for their Series A preferred shares. The
Series C convertible preferred shares will also have the same voting rights and rights to receive dividend
distributions as if they had already been converted to common shares.

Other Acquisition

Effective January 3, 2003, the Company acquired a Residence Inn® by Marriott® hotel in Redmond,
Washington, which contains 180 suites and was in operation when acquired. The hotel offers one and
two room suites with the amenities generally offered by upscale extended-stay hotels. It is located in a
developed area near Seattle, Washington.

The gross purchase price for the hotel was $32,550,000. This amount was satisfied at closing by cash
payments and other adjustments in the approximate amount of $12,550,000 and the assumption of
existing secured debt.

AHT Redmond, Inc., which was formed to acquire the hotel, has assumed existing debt secured by the
hotel. The lender is Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Association, as Trustee for the registered
holders of GMAC Commercial Mortgage Securities, Inc., Mortgage Pass Through Certificates, Series
2002-C3, as serviced by GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corporation,

The principal balance of the assumed debt as of the closing date was approximately $20,000,000, which
bore interest at 8.375%. The debt is evidenced by a promissory note, dated November 28, 2000, in the
original principal amount of $20,500,000. The promissory note provides for a maturity date of
December 1, 2025.

ftem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk
We do not engage in transactions in derivative financial instruments or derivative commodity

instruments. As of December 31, 2002, our financial instruments were not exposed to significant market
risk due to interest rate risk, foreign currency exchange risk, commodity price risk or equity price risk.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.

We have aundited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2002 and for the period from
January 17, 2001 (initial capitalization) through December 31, 2001. Our audits also included the
financial statement schedule listed in the Index of Item 15(a). These financial statements are the
responsibility of the company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit also includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. at December 31, 2002 and
2001, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31,
2002 and for the period January 17, 2001 (initial capitalization) through December 31, 2001, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the
related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken
as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Richmond, Virginia
February 28, 2003
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Apple Hospitality

Consolidated Balance Sheets

ASSETS
Investment in hotels,
net of accumulated depreciation of $8,646,478 and $1,084,933, respectively
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash:
Deposit for potential acquisition
Furniture, fixtures & equipment escrow
Debt service & other escrows
Distributions held for prior limited partners
Due from third party manager, net
Deferred financing costs, net
Other assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Notes payable-secured

Capital lease obligations

Accounts payable & accrued expenses
Accounts payable-prior limited partners
Interest payable

Account payable-affiliate

Distributions payable

Deferred incentive management fees payable
Total Liabilities

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Preferred stock, no par value, authorized
15,000,000 shares; none issued or outstanding

Series B preferred convertible stock, no par value,
authorized 240,000 shares; issued and
outstanding 240,000 shares

Common stock, no par value, authorized 200,000,000
shares; issued and outstanding 30,157,931 shares, and
13,907,733 shares, respectively

Distributions greater than net income

Total Shareholders’ Equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

4.

December 31, 2002

388,033,707
125,521,805

18,640,007
7,350,048
10,587,197
2,873,729
1,192,122
__3.555,485

S 557.754.100

$ 269,296,791
860,852
4,577,942
10,587,197
1,319,411
156,124
7,259,218
714,865
294,772,400

24,000
268,131,348
(5,173.648)

262,981.700
$__ 557754100

December 31, 2001
121,078,235
15,468,841
35,000,000
2,254,674
1,857,154

860,229

1,862,154
§ 178381287

$ 52,874,346
276,135
934,198

367,888
261,330
3,001,721
204,698
57,920,316

24,000
122,889,057
(2,452,086)

120,460,971
S 178.381.287




Apple Hospitaiity Two, Inc.
Consoclidated Income Statements

REVENUES:
Suite revenue
Other revenue
Total revenues
EXPENSES:
Operating expenses
Hotel administrative expense
Sales and marketing
Utilities
Repair & maintenance
Franchise fees
Management fees
Chain services
Taxes, insurance and other
General and administrative
Depreciation of real estate owned
Total expenses
Operating income

Interest income
Interest expense
Net income before extraordinary item

Extraordinary item:
Early extinguishment of debt
Net income

Basic and diluted earnings per common share, before
extraordinary item

Effect of extraordinary item

Basic and diluted earnings per common shares,
after extraordinary item

Weighted average shares outstanding

Distributions declared per common share

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

December 31, 2002

5.

Year ended

102,895,689
3,324,115
106,219,804

24,816,733
11,865,401
5,975,943
4,554,053
3,026,521
4,092,522
3,093,766
1,736,168
6,578,038
1,943,257
7,561,545
75,243,847
$ 30975857

1,292,925

(13,128 354)
$ 19,140,428

(273.789)
—18.866.639

0.89
(0.01)

0.88

21,557,041

1.00

January 17, 2001
(initiai capitalization)

through

December 31, 2001

10,022,272
414,493
10,436,765

2,262,543
1,068,709
482,086
422,565
280,361
400,888
474,041
233,643
552,734
491,009
1,084,933
7,753,612
$ 2,683,253

2,005,006

{1.371.540)
$ 3,316,719

—2.316.719

0.52

0.52

6,334,168

0.75
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APPLE HOSPITALITY TWO, INC,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flow from operating activities:

Net income

Depreciation of real estate owned

Accretion of fair value adjustment to mortgage notes payable
Amortization of deferred financing costs

Imputed interest

Changes in operating assets and liabilities {excluding effects of acquisitions)

Due from third party manager
Deferred incentive management fee
Debt service and other escrows
Other assets

Accounts payable-affiliates
Accrued interest

Accrued expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flow from investing activities:

Increase in cash restricted for capital improvements
Net cash paid for acquisitions

Capital improvements

Deposits on capital improvement projects

Deposit for potential acquisition

Cash paid for pre-acquisition costs

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from mortgage notes payable
Capital lease obligations-principal payments
Payment of financing costs
Repayment of secured notes payable
Payment from officer-shareholder for Series B convertible preferred stock

Net proceeds from issuance of common stock
Cash distributions paid to shareholders

Net cash provided by financing activities
Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Supplemental Information:

Acquisition of Investment in Hotels through:
Assumption of mortgage notes payable
Deposit for acquisitions used for acquisition of hotels
Other liabilities assumed
Escrows acquired at acquisition

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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January 17, 2001
(initial capitalization)

Year ended through
December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
$ 18,866,639 3 3,316,719

7,561,545 1,084 833
(721,528) -
32,282 B
450,000 -
(2,013,500) (289,229)
510,167 204,698
(721,361) -
(1,268,024) 101,730
(105,208) 261,330
951,523 367,888
459,532 (353,709)
24,002,069 4,694,360
(5.223,321) (862,179)
(13,421,611) (71,599,214)
(6,802,614) (572,636)
(2,809,000) -
- (35,000,000)

- (884,096)
(28,2586,546) (108,918,125)
83,000,000 -
(367,911) (71,305)
(1,224,404) -
(95,011,831) (382,062)
- 24,000
145,242,291 122,888,957
(17,330,704) (2,767,084)
114,307 441 118,692,506
110,052,964 15,468,741
15,468,841 100
$ 125,521,805 $ 15,468,841
$ 229,155,804 $ 53,256,408
35,000,000 -
4,136,839 768,848
(15,933,545) (387,762)
$ 252,359,098 $ 53,637,494




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 1

General Information and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. (the “Company”), a Virginia corporation, was formed on January 17, 2001,
with the first investor closing on May 1, 2001. The Company did not have any activity for the first
quarter 2001. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries. All significant inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated upon
consolidation.

The REIT Modernization Act, effective January 1, 2001, permits REITSs to establish taxable businesses
to conduct certain previously disallowed business activities. The Company has formed a wholly-owned
taxable REIT subsidiary, Apple Hospitality Management, Inc., and has leased all of its hotels to Apple
Hospitality Management or its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Lessee™).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less. The fair market value of cash and cash equivalents approximate their carrying value. Cash
equivalents are placed with high credit quality institutions and the balances may, at times, exceed federal
depository insurance limits.

Investment in hotels

The hotels are stated at cost, net of depreciation, and including real estate brokerage commissions paid to
Apple Suites Realty Group, Inc. (a related party) and other due-diligence costs reimbursed to Apple
Suites Advisors (also a related party) (see Note 7)). Repair and maintenance costs are expensed as
incurred while significant improvements, renovations, and replacements are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of the assets, which are 39 years for
buildings and major improvements and three to seven years for furniture and equipment.

The Company considers expenditures to be capital in nature based on the following criteria: 1) For a
single asset, the cost must be at least $300, including all normal and necessary costs to place the asset in
service, and the useful life must be at least one year. 2) For group purchases of 10 or more identical
assets, the unit cost for each asset must be at least $50, with the aggregate cost of the group purchase
being at least $750, including all normal and necessary costs to place the asset in service, and the useful
life must be at least one year. 3) For major repairs to buildings, furniture, fixtures and equipment, the
repair must be at least $2,000, and the useful life of the asset must be substantially extended.

The Company records impairment losses on hotel properties used in the operations if indicators of
impairment are present, and the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by the respective
properties are less than their carrying amount. Impairment losses are measured as the difference
between the asset’s fair value less cost to sell, and its carrying value. No impairment losses have been
recorded to date.
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized as earned, which is generally defined as the date upon which a guest occupies a
room or utilizes the hotel’s services.

Stock Incentive Plans

The Company elected to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees” (APB 25) and related Interpretations in accounting for its employee stock options.
As discussed in Note 5, the alternative fair value accounting provided for under FASB Statement No.
123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” (“FASB 123”) requires use of option valuation
models that were not developed for use in valuing employee stock options. Under APB 25, because the
exercise price of the Company’s stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the
date of grant and other criteria are met, no compensation expense is recognized.

Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share is computed based upon the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is calculated after giving effect to all potential
common shares that were dilutive and outstanding for the year. Series B preferred convertible shares are
not included in earnings per common share calculations until such time it becomes probable that such
shares can be converted to common shares (see Note 4).

Income Taxes

The Company is operated as, and will annually elect to be taxed as a REIT under Section 856 to 860 of
the Internal Revenue Code. Earnings and profits, which will determine the taxability of distributions to
shareholders, will differ from income reported for financial reporting purposes primarily due to the
differences for federal income tax purposes in the estimated useful lives used to compute depreciation.
The characterization of 2002 distributions of $1.00 per share for tax purposes were 61% ordinary income
and 39% return of capital (unaudited).

The Lessee, as a taxable REIT subsidiary of the Company, is subject to federal and state income taxes.
The taxable REIT subsidiary incurred a loss for the year ended December 31, 2002 and for the period
January 17, 2001 through December 31, 2001, and therefore did not have any tax expense. No operating
loss benefit has been recorded in the consolidated balance sheet since realization 1s uncertain. Total net
operating loss carry-forward for federal income tax purposes benefits were $1.6 million at December 31,
2002.

Sales and Marketing Costs

Sales and marketing costs are expensed when incurred. These costs represent the expense for franchise
advertising and reservation systems under the terms of the hotel management agreements and general
and administrative expenses that are directly attributable to advertising and promotion.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States recuires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those
estimates.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to amounts in prior years’ financial statements to conform to
current year presentation,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement for Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141,
“Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangibles,” effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2001. Under new rules, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to
have indefinite lives will no longer be amortized but will be subject to annual impairment tests in
accordance with the Statements. Other intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their useful
lives. The Company adopted these new accounting standards beginning the first quarter of fiscal 2002.
The adoption of these standards did not have a material impact on its financial statements.

In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets”. The Statement supercedes Statement 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-
Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of”, and APB Opinion No.30, “Reporting the
Results of Operations—Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions”, for segments of a business
to be disposed of. SFAS No. 144 retains the requirements of Statement 121 relating to recognition and
measurement of an impairment loss and resolves certain implementation issues resulting from Statement
121. This statement became effective January 1, 2002. The adoption of this statement did not have a
material impact on the consolidated financial position or results of operations of the Company.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In April 2002, the FASB issued Statement 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Correction” (“SFAS No. 145”). Statement 4,
“Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt” (“SFAS No. 4”), required that gains and
losses from the extinguishment of debt that were included in the determination of net income be
aggregated and, if material, classified as an extraordinary item. The provisions of SFAS No. 145 related
to the rescission of SFAS No. 4 will require the Company to reclassify prior period items into continuing
operations, including those recorded in the current period, that do not meet the extraordinary
classification. Additionally, future gains and losses related to debt extinguishment may be required to be
classified in income from continuing operations. The provisions of SFAS No. 145 related to the
rescission of SFAS No. 4 became effective in fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002. The Company,
from time to time, incurs such charges and is currently assessing the impact that this statement will have
on its consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Note 2

Investment in Hotels

At December 31, 2002, the Company owned forty-eight hotels. Ten of the hotels (the “Crestline
Portfolio” or “Res Il Portfolio”) were acquired by the Company in September 2001 from Crestline
Capital Corporation and certain of its subsidiaries. Fifteen of the Company’s hotels (the “Res I
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Portfolio”) were acquired effective February 22, 2002, and the remaining twenty-three (the “Res II
Portfolio”) were acquired effective August 28, 2002.

Investment in hotels consisted of the following:

Land § 101,247,432
Building and improvements 275,291,573
Furniture fixtures and equipment 20,141,180
396,680,185
Less: accumulated depreciation (8.646.478)
Investment in hotels, net § 388,033,707

Recent Transactions — Res I Portfolio

During the first quarter of 2002, the Company acquired, through subsidiaries, Marriott Residence Inn
Limited Partnership, which owns 15 extended-stay hotels. For simplicity, this entity will be referred to
as the “Res I Partnership.” Although the acquisition was conducted through a merger in which our
subsidiaries acquired the Res I Partnership, the purpose and result was our acquisition of the hotels.
Each hotel operates as part of the Residence Inn® by Marriott® franchise system.

The gross purchase price for the acquisition was approximately $133.4 million. The purchase price, as
subject to certain adjustments at closing, was paid through a combination of transactions, described
below. In November 2001, the Company made a deposit of $35 million, which was applied toward the
purchase price at closing. In addition, a cash payment of approximately $7 million was made at closing.
Our source for these funds was our ongoing and registered public offering of Units. To satisfy the
remainder of the purchase price, the Company received a credit at closing equal to the unpaid balance of
existing loans, which are secured by the hotels.

The secured loans continue to be an obligation of the Res I Partnership, which continues to own the
hotels. Further details about the secured loans are provided in Note 3 below.

The Company also used the proceeds of our ongoing offering to pay 2% of the gross purchase price, in
the amount of $2,667,052, as a commission to Apple Suites Realty Group, Inc.

The entire purchase price paid for the hotels was allocated to tangible assets. No goodwill or other
intangible assets were recorded.

Res II Portfolio

In August 2002, the Company acquired, through subsidiaries, Marriott Residence Inn I Limited
Partnership, which has direct or indirect ownership of 23 extended-stay hotels. For simplicity, this entity
will be referred to as the “Res Il Partnership.” Although the acquisition was conducted through a merger
in which the Company’s subsidiaries acquired the Res II Partnership, the purpose and result was the
Company’s acquisition of the hotels. Each hotel operates as part of the Residence Inn® by Marriott®
franchise system.

The gross purchase price for the acquisition was approximately $136 million, net of cash acquired of $24
million. The purchase price, as subject to certain adjustments at closing, was satisfied through a
combination of transactions. They included the assumption of the existing loan in the approximate
amount of $132 million (representing outstanding principal and interest as of August 31, 2002), which is
secured by the hotels owned directly by the Partnership, together with a cash payment for the net balance
of the purchase price (after credit for a deposit of $3 million, with interest, and certain other cash
balances). The Company’s source for the cash payment was our ongoing and registered public offering
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of Units, plus funds raised in the Company’s prior offering, which ended as of May 29, 2002. The
secured loan continues to be an obligation of the Res II Partnership, which continues to own the hotels.
Further details about the secured loan are provided in Note 3 below.

The Company also used the proceeds of its ongoing offering to pay 2% of the gross purchase‘price, in

the amount of $3,199,732, as a commission to Apple Suites Realty Group, Inc.

The entire purchase price paid for the hotels was allocated to tangible assets. No goodwill or other
intangible assets were recorded.

Note 3

Notes Payable

Res I Portfolio

The Res I Partnership, the direct owner of the hotels, was also the borrower under secured loans from
two lenders (with one being the senior lender and the other being the subordinate lender). The senior
lender was LaSalle Bank National Association as Trustee for Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Series
1996-2. The senior lender held separate loans for each hotel in the aggregate original principal amount
of $100 million. Each loan held by the senior lender is secured by a first mortgage on the hotel involved
and by a related first priority security interest in the rents, revenues and other personal property of such
hotel. At acquisition the aggregate unpaid principal balance of these senior loans was $70,868,403.
Each senior loan bore interest at an annual rate of 8.60%. The aggregate monthly payment under the
senior loans was $874,163. An aggregate balloon payment in the amount of approximately $69 million
was due at maturity.

On September 20, 2002, the Company refinanced the aforementioned secured loans and paid penalties of
$273,789, which was recorded as an extraordinary item in the income statement. Upon closing, the
Company paid approximately $89 million in balloon payments, with approximately $69 million paid to
the senior lender and approximately $20 million paid to the subordinate lender in order to terminate the
loans. The new secured note in the amount of $83 million calls for two separate pools of loans with 10
loans in one pool and 5 loans in the other. The term of the note is 10 years with a 25 year amortization.
The note bears interest at the fixed rate of 7.4% per annum and payments are made in monthly
installments, of principal and interest. The loans mature in October 2012 with an aggregate balloon
payment of approximately $67 million.

Res II Portfolio

Effective August 28, 2002, the Company acquired through subsidiaries, Marriott Residence Inn If
Limited Partnership, which has direct or indirect ownership of twenty-three hotels, and in conjunction
with the acquisition, assumed a mortgage note of approximately $131 million. The note bears interest at
the fixed rate of 8.85% per annum and matures in March 2006 with an aggregate balloon payment of
approximately $122 million. The note is payable in monthly installments, of principal and interest. In
connection with the purchase price allocated for the Res Il portfolio, the Company recorded a debt
premium of $5.8 million to reflect the fair value of the note at the date of the acquisition. The effective
rate on the note after consideration to the premium is 7.4%.

Crestline Portfolio — Res 1]

In conjunction with the Company’s 2001 acquisition of the Crestline Portfolio, the Company assumed a
$53 million promissory note. The note bears a fixed interest rate of 8.08% per annum and is secured by
the 10 hotels. The maturity date is January 2010, with a balloon payment of $35 4 million. The loan is
payable in monthly installments, including principal and interest.
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The aggregate amounts of principal payable under the promissory notes, for the five years subsequent to
December 31, 2002 are as follows:

Res | Res I Crestline
Portfolio Portfolio Portfolio Total

2003 $1,119,882 $2,353,373 $ 1,732,398 $5,205,653
2004 1,189,145 2,539,963 1,868,021 5,597,129
2005 1,299,204 2,810,962 2,038,682 6,148,848
2006 1,503,877 122,341,822 2,212,110 . 126,057,809
2007 1,526,777 -- 2,400,293 3,927,070
Thereafter 76,185,407 -- 41,026,264 117,211,671
Fair Value Adjustment
of Assumed Debt -- 5,148,611 -- 5,148,611

$82,824,292 $135.194,731 $51,277,768 $269,296,791

Lease commitments

The Company and its subsidiaries lease certain equipment under capital leases. The leases generally
provide for the lessee to pay taxes, maintenance, insurance and certain other operating costs of the leased
property. The leases on most of the properties contain renewal options.

Following is a summary of future minimum payments that have initial or remaining non-cancelable lease
terms subsequent to December 31, 2002:

Year Total

2003 $559,205
2004 288,459
2005 39,195
2006 31,574
2007 8,043
Total minimurn lease payments $926,476
Less: imputed interest (65.624)
$860,852
Note 4
Sharcholders’ Equity

The Company raised equity capital through a “best efforts” offering of Units by David Lerner
Associates, Inc. (the “Managing Dealer”), which will receive selling commissions of 7.5% and a
marketing expense allowance of 2.5% based on proceeds of the Units sold.

One Unit consists of one common share and one Series A preferred share of the Company. The
Company received gross proceeds of $300,000,360 from the sale of 3,157,895 Units at $9.50 per Unit
and 27,000,036 Units at $10 per Unit, including Units sold through the reinvestment of distributions
through December 31, 2002. The net proceeds of the offering, after deducting selling commissions and
other offering costs were $268,131,348. The Company completed its offering on November 26, 2002.
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The Company issued 240,000 Class B convertible preferred shares, consisting of 202,500 shares to Mr.
Knight, and a combined 37,500 Series B convertible preferred shares to two other individuals. The
Company issued the Class B convertible preferred shares before the initial closing of its minimum
offering of $30,000,000, in exchange for payment of $.10 per Series B convertible preferred share, or an
aggregate of $24,000. There are no dividends payable on the Series B convertible preferred shares.
Upon liquidation of the Company, the holders of the Series B convertible preferred shares will be
entitled to a liquidation payment of $10 per the number of common shares into which each Series B
convertible preferred share is convertible as described below. However, the priority liquidation payment
of the holders of the Series B convertible preferred shares is junior to the holders of the Series A
preferred shares. In the event that the liquidation of the Company’ assets results in proceeds that exceed
the distribution rights of the Series A preferred shares and the Series B convertible preferred shares, the
remaining proceeds will be distributed between the common shares and the Series B convertible
preferred shares, on an as converted basis.

Each holder of outstanding Series B convertible preferred shares shall have the right to convert any of
such shares into Units of the Company upon and for 180 days following the occurrence of either of the
following conversion events:

(1) substantially all of the Company’s assets, stock or business, is transferred whether through exchange,
merger, consolidation, lease, share exchange or otherwise, or

(2) the termination or expiration without renewal of the Advisory Agreement with Apple Suites
Advisors, Inc.

Upon the occurrence of either triggering event and for purposes of determining the liquidation payment
due to each holder of a Series B convertible preferred share, each Series B convertible preferred share is
convertible into 5.3 Units, based upon the gross proceeds raised through the date of conversion.

No additional consideration is due upon the conversion of the Series B preferred convertible shares.
Upon the probable occurrence of a conversion event, the Company will record expense for the difference
between the fair value of the Company’s common stock and issue price of the Series B preferred
convertible shares.

Compensation expense related to issuance of 202,500 Series B convertible preferred shares to Mr.
Knight will be recognized at such time when the number of common shares to be issued for conversion
of the Series B shares can be reasonably estimated and the event triggering the conversion of the Series
B shares to common shares is probable. The expense will be measured as the difference between the fair
value of the common stock for which the Series B shares can be converted and the amounts paid for the
Series B shares.

The issuance of the Series B convertible preferred shares to other individuals not employed by the
Company is accounted for under FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.” FExpense related to the issuance of the Series B convertible preferred shares was
determined based on fair value of the Series B convertible preferred shares at grant date in excess of
amounts paid by these individuals. Since the number of common shares to which the Series B
convertible preferred shares can be converted was not known at grant date and ultimate convertibility to
common shares is only allowed through a defined triggering event, the fair value of the Series B
convertible preferred shares will be remeasured and not recorded as expense until the likely occurrence
of an event triggering the conversion of the Series B convertible preferred shares to common stock.
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In January 2003, the shareholders of Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. and Apple Suites, Inc. approved the
acquisition of Apple Suites, Inc. by Apple Hospitality Two, Inc., (see Note 12). In connection with this
transaction, all of the 240,000 Series B convertible preferred shares converted to 1,272,000 Series C
convertible preferred shares of the Company. The Company will recognize expense in its Income
Statement in the first quarter of 2003 related to this conversion.

Note 5

Stock Incentive Plans

On April 30, 2001, the Board of Directors approved a Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan (the
“Directors Plan”) whereby Directors, who are not employees of the Company or affiliates (see Note 7),
automatically receive options to purchase stock for five years from the adoption of the plan. Under the
Directors Plan, the number of shares to be issued is equal to 45,000 plus 1.8% of the number of Units
sold in excess of 3,157,895 Units. This plan currently relates to the initial public offering of 20,157,895
Units and the additional offering of 10,000,026 Units; therefore, the maximum number of shares to be
1ssued under the Directors Plan is currently 531,000. The options expire 10 years from the date of grant.
As of December 31, 2002, 238,497 Units have been reserved for issuance.

On April 30, 2001, the Board of Directors approved an Incentive Stock Option Plan (the “Incentive
Plan”) whereby incentive awards may be granted to certain employees of the Company or affiliates.
Under the Incentive Plan, the number of Units to be issued is equal to 35,000 plus 4.625% of the number
of shares sold in the initial offering in excess of 3,157,895 plus 4.4% of the total number of Units sold in
additional offerings. This plan also currently relates to the initial public offering of 20,157,895 Units and
the additional offering of 10,000,026 Units; therefore, the maximum number of Units that can be issued
under the Incentive Plan is currently 1,261,251. As of December 31, 2002, 532,180 Units have been
reserved for issuance.

Both plans generally provide, among other things, that options be granted at exercise prices not lower
than the market value of the Units on the date of grant. Under the Incentive Plan, at the earliest, options
become exercisable at the date of grant. The optionee has up to 10 years from the date on which the
options first become exercisable to exercise the options. In 2001, the Company granted 26,592 options
to purchase shares under the Directors Plan and granted no options under the Incentive Plan. In 2002,
the Company granted 16,128 options to purchase shares under the Directors Plan and granted no options
under the Incentive Plan. Activity in the Company’s share option plan during 2001 and 2002 is
summarized in the following table:
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2001 2002

Weighted-Average Weighted-Average

Options Ontions Exercise Price
Granted 22,000 22,000 $ 9.50
Granted 4,592 4,592 $10.00
Granted 16,128 16,128 $10.00
Exercised --- --- ---
Forfeited -—- - -

Cutstanding, end of year 26,592 42,720
Exercisable at end of yvear 26,592 42.720

Weighted-average fair
value of Options granted
during the year § 51 $ 47 $ .50

Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is required by FASB 123, under the
fair value method described in that statement. The fair value for these options was estimated at the date
of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions.
For the options granted in 2001, the company assumed a risk-free interest rate of 5.35%; a dividend yield
of 10.53% ; and volatility factor of the expected market price of the company’s common stock of 0.253;
and a weighted-average expected life of the options of 10 years. For the options granted in 2001, the
company assumed a risk-free interest rate of 5.35%; a dividend yield of 10% ; and volatility factor of the
expected market price of the company’s common stock of .253 ; and a weighted-average expected life of
the options of 10 years. For the options granted in 2002, the Company assumed a risk-free interest rate
of 5.04%; a dividend yield of 10%; and volatility factor of the expected market price of the Company’s
common stock of §.244; and a weighted-average expected life of the options of 10 years. The weighted-
average Fair value of options granted was $0.51 for 2001, and $0.47 for 2002 options granted.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
options which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation
models require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility.

For purposes of FASB 123 pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to
expense over the options’ vesting period. As the options are exercisable within six months of the date of
grant, the full impact of the pro forma adjustment to net income is disclosed below.

2002
Net income after extraordinary item available to common shareholders
Pro forma ‘ $ 18,859,059
As reported $ 18,866,639
Earnings per common share-diluted
Pro forma $ .88
As reported $ .88
Note 6

Management Agreements

Our hotels are subject to management agreements under which Residence Inn by Marriott, Inc. (the
“Manager”’) manages our hotels, generally for an initial term of 15 to 20 years with renewal terms at the
option of the Manager of up to an additional 50 years. The agreements generally provide for payment of
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base management fees, which are calculated annually and are generally 3% of sales, and incentive
management fees, which are generally equal to 15% to 20% of operating profit (as defined in the
management agreements) over a priority return (as defined in the management agreements) to us. Total
incentive management fees may not exceed 20% of cumulative operating profit, or 20% of current year
operating profit. Incentive management fees are currently payable only if and to the extent there is
sufficient cash flow from the hotels after consideration of qualifying debt service and after consideration
to a priority return on investment, including property improvements. Amounts not currently payable are
deferred and are payable in future years only if and to the extent there is sufficient cash flow from future
operations or upon sale or refinancing of the hotels after consideration to a priority return to us (as
defined in the management agreements), which is generally 12%. In the event of early termination of the
management agreements, the Manager will receive additional fees based on the unexpired term and
expected future base and incentive management fees. We have the option to terminate the management
agreements if specified performance thresholds are not satisfied.

Incentive fees are payable on a portfolio by portfolio basis. We have three portfolios with separate
incentive management agreements which are subject to this calculation. The Company records incentive
management fee exposure when it is considered probable that these fees will be paid. We have recorded
the full amount of deferred incentive management fees on the Res III portfolio. We have not recorded
any deferred incentive management fees for the Res I and Res II portfolios.

The Company has acquired its hotels in three separate transactions, (“Res I’ — purchased February 2002,
“Res 11” — purchased August 28, 2002, and “Res [II” — purchased September 2001). In the Res I and Res
IT purchases, the Company assumed the amended and restated management agreements in effect with the
Manager by the prior owner and the Company assumed deferred incentive management fees totaling
$6.7 million and $7.0 million, respectively, at the date of the respective acquisitions. Additionally, the
Company assumed the cost basis of $187 and $243 million for Res I and Res II, respectively, and the
holding period of the prior owner for purposes of calculating the priority returns upon sale of the
properties. The Company paid approximately $132 and $161 million for Res I and Res II, respectively.

The following table summarizes deferred incentive management fees (“DIMF”) under these management
agreements (dollars in millions).

IMF 2002 Amount Accrued
DIMF Accumulated Total IMF Total in Consolidated
Assumed Post-Acquisition IMF Paid DIMF Balance Sheet
Resl $ 6.7 $2.4 $ 9.5 $.0 $ 95 $0
Res 11 7.0 9 7.9 0 7.9 0
Res ITT .0 1.2 1.2 5 7 i
Total $13.7 $4.5 $18.6 $.5 $18.1 $.7

No amounts of DIMF were recorded upon the acquisition of Res I and Res II as the fair value of these
amounts were not readily determinable and payment was not considered probable.

Pursuant to the terms of the management agreements, the Manager also furnishes the hotels with certain
chain services which are generally provided on a central or regional basis to all hotels in the Marriott
International hotel system. Chain services include central training, advertising and promotion, a national
reservation system, computerized payroll and accounting services, and such additional services as
needed which may be more efficiently performed on a centralized basis. Costs and expenses incurred in
providing such services are allocated among all domestic hotels managed, owned or leased by Marriott
International or its subsidiaries on a fair and equitable basis. In addition, the Company’s hotels
participate in the Marriott Rewards® program. The cost of this program is charged to all hotels in the
Marriott International hotel system.
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The Lessees are obligated to provide the Manager with sufficient funds, generally 5% of revenue, to
cover the cost of replacements and renewals to the hotels’ property and improvements. Under certain
circumstances, the Lessees will be required to establish escrow accounts for such purposes under terms
outlined in the agreements. To the extent the Lessees are not required to fund such amounts into escrow
accounts, the Lessees remain liable to make such fundings in the future. The Lessees are obligated under
these management agreements to fund FF&E requirements in excess of amounts placed in restricted cash

accounts, which as of December 31 had aggregate balances of $18.6 million.
Note 7

Related Parties

AS of December 31, 2002, we were externally-advised and had contracted with Apple Suites Advisors,
inc. (“ASA”) to advise and provide day to day management services to the Company. In accordance
with the contract, the Company paid ASA a fee equal to .1% to .25% of total equity contributions
received by the Company in addition to certain reimbursable expenses. During 2002 ASA earned
$568,170 under this agreement and was reimbursed expenses of $423,000 of which $144,000 was
capitalized to acquisitions.

Concurrent with our merger with Apple Suites on January 31, 2003, the Company terminated its
advisory contract with ASA and became self advised. To implement the termination of the advisory
agreement, we purchased ASA. We acquired all of Mr. Glade M. Knight’s stock in ASA instead of
paying a $6.48 miliion termination fee due ASA under the advisory agreement. Mr. Knight received a
cash payment of $2 million and a non-interest-bearing promissory note, due four years after the merger,
in a principal amount of $4.48 million. The Company will recognize an expense related to this
transaction in the first quarter of 2003. Also in connection with our merger and the termination of the
advisory agreement with ASA, our outstanding Series B convertible preferred shares were exchanged for
1,272,000 newly created Series C convertible preferred shares which have the same voting and dividend
rights as if they had already been converted into 1,272,000 common shares.
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Note 8

Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with

FAS 128:

Numerator:

Net income before extraordinary item
and numerator for basic and diluted
earnings

Denominator:

Denominator for basic

earnings per share-weighted-
average shares

Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options:

Year ended
December 31,2002

£19,140,428

21,557,041

1,100

January 17, 2001
(initial capitalization)
through
December 31, 2001

$ 3,316,719

6,334,168

1.100

Denominator for basic and diluted
earnings per share-adjusted
weighted-average shares and
assumed conversions

21,558,141

Basic and diluted earnings per
common share

$ .89

Extraordinary item
Effect of extraordinary item

(273,789)

(.01)

Net income after extraordinary item
and numerator for basic and
diluted earnings

Basic and diluted earnings per common
share, after extraordinary item

$18,866,639

$ .88

$ 3,316,719

$ 52

-30-




Note 9

Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
The following is a summary of quarterly results of operations for the period ended December 31, 2002:

First Second Third Fourth
2002 Quarter _Quarter Quarter Quarter

Revenues $12,350,516  $22,219,637  $24,482,552  $48,460,024
Net income $ 2,288,543 $ 3,228,053 $ 4,840,832 § 8,509,211

Basic and diluted earnings
Per common share 0.15 0.17 0.19 0.29

Distributions declared per 0.25 0.25 . 0.25
share

Note 10

Pro Forma Information (Unaudited)

The following unaudited pro forma information for the year ended December 31, 2002 is presented as if
the acquisitions of the Res I portfolio of 15 hotels and the Res II portfolio of 23 hotels occurred on
January 1, 2002. The pro forma information does not purport to represent what the Company’s results of
operations would actually have been if such transactions, in fact, had occurred on January 1, 2002, nor
does it purport to represent the results of operations for future periods.

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Hotel revenues $158,173,560 $168,654,020
Net income $ 22,916,131 $ 16,706,060
Net income per $ 1.06 $ 1.12

share-basic and diluted

The pro forma information reflects adjustments for actual revenues and expenses of the 38 hotels
acquired in 2002 for the respective period in 2002 prior to acquisition by the Company. Net income has
been adjusted as follows: (1) depreciation has been adjusted based on the Company’s basis in the hotels;
(2) advisory expenses have been adjusted based on the Company’s contractual arrangements; (3) interest
expense has been adjusted to reflect the acquisition as of January 1, 2002; (4) common stock raised
during 2002 to purchase these hotels has been adjusted to reflect issuances as of January 1, 2002.

Note 11

Industry Segments

The Company owns extended-stay hotel properties throughout the United States that generate rental and
other property related income. The Company separately evaluates the performance of each of its hotel
properties. However, because each of the hotel properties has similar economic characteristics, facilities,
and services, the properties have been aggregated into a single segment. All segment disclosure is
included in or can be derived from the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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Note 12

Subsequent Events

Distribution
In January 2003, the Company distributed to its shareholders dividends in the approximate amount of
$7,259,218 (30.25 per share). '

Acquisition of Apple Suites, Inc.

We also entered into a merger agreement with Apple Suites, Inc. (“Apple Suites™) on October 23, 2002.
Effective January 31, 2003, Apple Suites merged with and into Hospitality Acquisition Company, our
wholly-owned subsidiary. Apple Suites owned, either directly or through its subsidiaries, a total of 17
upper-end extended-stay hotels throughout the United States, which comprised a total of 1,922 suites.
The merger did not change the management positions Mr. Glade M. Knight held with us prior to the
merger nor did our boards of directors change as a result of the merger.

Pursuant to the merger, each Apple Suites common share, issued and outstanding immediately prior to
the effective time of the merger, was converted into the right to receive either: (i) one Unit of the
Company, consisting of one common share of the Company and one Series A preferred share of the
Company; or (i1) if the holder of a Apple Suites common share elected, $10.00 in cash per share, subject
to a limit on the total amount of cash to be paid in the merger. As a result of the merger, holders of Apple
Suites common shares received a total of 10,883,544 Units of the Company and approximately $17.8
million in cash. The Company funded the cash portion of the Merger consideration with available cash,
and the Company assumed Apple Suites’ liability and paid certain merger costs.

In connection with acquisition of Apple Suites, Company shareholders were paid a special distribution of
$0.497 per share, totaling approximately $15 million.

Also, in connection with this transaction, the Company terminated its advisory contract with ASA and
became self advised with all employees of ASA becoming employees of the Company. To implement
the termination of the advisory agreement, we purchased ASA. We acquired all of Mr. Glade M.
Knight's stock in ASA instead of paying a $6.48 million termination fee due ASA under the advisory
agreement. Mr. Knight received a cash payment of $2 million and a non-interest-bearing promissory
note, due four years after the merger, in a principal amount of $4.48 million. The Company will
recognize an expense related to this transaction in the first quarter of 2003. Also in connection with our
merger and the termination of the advisory agreement with ASA, our outstanding Series B convertible
preferred shares were exchanged for 1,272,000 newly created Series C convertible preferred shares
which have the same voting and dividend rights as if they had already been converted into 1,272,000
common shares (see Note 4).

In addition, each Apple Suites Class B convertible share owned by Mr. Knight and two other individuals,
issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger, was converted into Units.
As a result, holders of Apple Suites Class B convertible shares received a total of 480,000 Units in the
Merger. Apple Suites will recognize expense of approximately $3.8 million in its Income Statement in
the first quarter of 2003 related to this conversion.

Other Acquisition

Effective January 3, 2003, the Company acquired a Residence Inn® by Marriott® hotel in Redmond,
Washington, which contains 180 suites and was in operation when acquired. The hotel offers one and
two room suites with the amenities generally offered by upscale extended-stay hotels. It is located in a
developed area near Seattle, Washington.
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The gross purchase price for the hotel was $32,550,000. This amount was satisfied at closing by cash
payments and other adjustments in the approximate amount of $12,550,000 and the assumption of
existing secured debt.

AHT Redmond, Inc., which was formed to acquire the hotel, has assumed existing debt secured by the
hotel. The lender is Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Association, as Trustee for the registered
holders of GMAC Commercial Mortgage Securities, Inc., Mortgage Pass Through Certificates, Series
2002-C3, as serviced by GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corporation.

The principal balance of the assumed debt as of the closing date was approximately $20,000,000. The
debt is evidenced by a 8.375% promissory note, dated November 28, 2000, in the original principal
amount of $20,500,000. The promissory note provides for a maturity date of December 1, 2025.

ftem 9. Changes in and Disagreement with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

None.

PART 1

In accordance with General Instruction G (3) of Form 10-K, the information called for by Items 10, 11,
12, and 13 of Part TI is incorporated by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement for our Annual
Meeting of Shareholders scheduled to be held May 14, 2063.

Item 14. Controls and Procedures

Based on their most recent review, which was completed within 90 days of the filing of this report, the
Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be
disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including its
principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure and are effective to ensure that such information is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. There were no
significant changes in the Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect
those controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K
(@
1. Financial Statements of Apple Hospitality Five, Inc.

Independent Auditors® Report
Emst & Young LLP
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Consolidated Balance Sheets for the period September 20, 2002 (initial
capitalization) through December 31, 2002

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the period
September 20, 2002 (initial capitalization) through December 31, 2002

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the period
September 20, 2002 (initial capitalization) through December 31, 2002

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the period September 20,
2002 (initial capitalization) through December 31, 2002

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedules
All other financial statement schedules have been omitted because they
are not applicable or not required or because the required information is
included elsewhere in the financial statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits

Incorporated herein by reference are the exhibits listed under “Exhibits
Index” to Form 10-K Report.

(b) The following report on Form 8-K was filed by the registrant during the
last quarter covered by this report:

Form 8-K dated October 25, 2002

The §&-K filed October 25, 2002 reports on Item 5 and does not contain any financial
statements.

©) Exhibits:

Agreement and Plan of Merger among Apple Hospitality Two, Inc., Hospitality
Acquisition Company and Apple Suites, Inc. dated October 24, 2002. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 25, 2002; SEC
File No. 333-53984).

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of November 28, 2001 by and between Apple
Hospitality Two, Inc., Marriott Residence Inn Limited Partnership, AHT Res
Acquisition, L.P. and RIBM One LLC. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Exhibit No. Description
2.1
2.2
2.3

Certificate of Merger dated March 28, 2002 (with effective date of March 29, 2002) for
merger of AHT Res Acquisition, L.P. with and into Marriott Residence Inn Limited
Partnership. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

-43-



4.2

43

4.4

4.5

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of April 30, 2002 by and among Apple
Hospitality Two, Inc., AHT Res [I Acquisition, L.P., RIBM Two LLC and Marriott
Residence Inn IT Limited Partnership. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Certificate of Merger dated August 28, 2002 for merger of AHT Res I Acquisition,
L.P. with and into Marriott Residence Inn II Limited Partnership (as surviving entity).
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Current Report on Form 8-X filed on
September 12, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
Form S-11 filed by Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.; SEC File No. 333-77055).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to Form S-11 filed by Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.; SEC File No. 333-
77055). '

First Amendment to l.oan Agreement dated as of April 23, 1996 by and between
Marriott Residence Inn Limited Partnership (Borrower) and German American Capital
Corporation (Lender) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Annual Report of
Marriott Residence Inn Limited Partnership on Form 10-K filed on January 23, 1998;
SEC File No. 033-20022).

Loan Agreement dated as of October 10, 1995 by and between Marriott Residence Inn
Limited Partnership (Borrower) and German American Capital Corporation (Lender)
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Annual Report of Marriott Residence Inn
Limited Partnership on Form 10-K filed on January 23, 1998; SEC File No. 033-
20022).

Indemnity Agreement dated October 10, 1995 by Marriott Residence Inn Limited
Partnership (Borrower) and RIBM One Corporation (collectively, the Indemnitors) in
favor of German American Capital Corporation (Lender) (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Annual Report of Marriott Residence Inn Limited Partnership on Form
10-K filed on January 23, 1998; SEC File No. 033-20022).

Four Party Agreement dated as of October 10, 1995 by and among Marriott Residence
Inn Limited Partnership (Borrower), German American Capital Corporation (Senior
Lender), Starwood Mezzanine Investors, L.P. (Subordinate Lender) and Residence Inn
by Marriott, Inc. (Manager) {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Annual
Report of Marriott Residence Inn Limited Partnership on Form 10-K filed on January
23, 1998; SEC File No. 033-20022).

Loan Agreement dated as of October 10, 1995 by and between Marriott Residence Inn
Limited Partnership (Borrower) and Starwood Mezzanine Investors, L.P. (Lender)
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Annual Report of Marriott Residence Inn
Limited Partnership on Form 10-K filed on January 23, 1998; SEC File No. 033-
20022).
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4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

Loan Agreement dated as of April 20, 1988 by and between Marriott Residence Inn
Limited Partnership and The Sanwa Bank Limited (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to Annual Report of Marriott Residence Inn Limited Partnership on Form
10-K filed on January 23, 1998; SEC File No. 033-20022).

Loan Modification Agreement dated as of March 29, 2002 by and among Marriott
Residence Inn Limited Partnership, AHT Res I GP, Inc., AHM Res I Limited
Partnership and LaSalle Bank National Association, as Trustee for Mortgage Pass-
Through Certificates Series 1996-2. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Loan Modification Agreement dated as of March 29, 2002 by and among Marriott
Residence Inn Limited Partnership, AHT Res I GP, Inc., AHM Res I Limited
Partnership and LaSalle Bank National Association, as Indenture Trustee for the
benefit of the Holders of iStar Asset Receivables Trust Collateralized Mortgage Bonds
Series 2000-1. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to Current Report on Form 8§-
K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Security Agreement dated as of March 29, 2002 by and between AHM Res [ Limited
Partnership and LaSalle Bank National Association, as Trustee for Mortgage Pass-
Through Certificates Series 1996-2. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Security Agreement dated as of March 29, 2002 by and between AHM Res I Limited
Partnership and LaSalle Bank National Association, as Indenture Trustee for the
benefit of the Holders of iStar Asset Receivables Trust Collateralized Mortgage Bonds
Series 2000-1. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 to Current Report on Form 8-
K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

First Amendment to Four Party Agreement dated as of March 29, 2002 by and between
Marriott Residence Inn Limited Partnership, Residence Inn by Marriott, Inc., AHM
Res I Limited Partnership, LaSalle Bank National Association, as Trustee for
Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Series 1996-2, and LaSalle Bank National
Association, as Indenture Trustee for the benefit of the Holders of iStar Asset
Receivables Trust Collateralized Mortgage Bonds Series 2000-1. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.11 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC
File No. 333-53984).

Ratification and First Amendment to Intercreditor Agreement dated as of March 29,
2002 by and between Marriott Residence Inn Limited Partnership, LaSalle Bank
National Association, as Trustee for Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Series 1996-
2, and LaSalle Bank National Association, as Indenture Trustee for the benefit of the
Holders of iStar Asset Receivables Trust Collateralized Mortgage Bonds Series 2000-
1. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.12 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
April 15,2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).
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4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

Acknowledgment, Waiver, Consent and Amendment dated as of August 28, 2002 by
and between Marriott Residence Inn IT Limited Partnership (Borrower), LaSalle Bank
National Association (f/k/a LaSalle National Bank), as Trustee for Nomura Asset
Securities Corporation Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 1996-
MD V (Lender). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form
8-K filed on September 12, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Facility Mortgagee Agreement dated as of August 28, 2002 by and between Marriott
Residence Inn [T Limited Partnership (Borrower), AHM Res 1I Limited Partnership
(Tenant), Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. and LaSalle Bank National Association (f’k/a
LaSalle National Bank), as Trustee for Nomura Asset Securities Corporation
Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 1996-MD V (Lender).
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form §-K filed on
September 12, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Supplemental Assignment of Leases and Rents dated as of August 28, 2002 by and
between Marriott Residence Inn 1T Limited Partnership (Borrower) and LaSalle Bank
National Association (f/k/a LaSalle National Bank), as Trustee for Nomura Asset
Securities Corporation Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 1996-
MD V (Lender). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Current Report on Form
8-K filed on September 12, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Supplemental Security Agreement dated as of August 28, 2002 by and between
Marriott Residence Inn II Limited Partnership (Debtor) and LaSalle Bank National
Association (f/k/a LaSalle National Bank), as Trustee for Nomura Asset Securities
Corporation Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 1996-MD V
(Secured Party). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Current Report on Form
8-K filed on September 12, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Tenant Security Agreement dated as of August 28, 2002 by and between Marriott
Residence Inn II Limited Partnership (Secured Party) and AHM Res I Limited
Partnership (Debtor). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Deed of Trust, Assignment of Leases and Profits, Security Agreement and Fixture
Filing dated as of November 28, 2000 from RedInn Hotel, L.P. to TransNation Title
Insurance Company for the benefit of GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corporation.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
September 12; 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Deed Of Trust Note dated November 28, 2000 in the original principal amount of
$20,500,000 and made payable to the order of GMAC Commercial Mortgage
Corporation. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on February 3, 2003; SEC File No. 000-49748).

Deed of Trust, Assignment of Leases and Profits, Security Agreement and Fixture
Filing dated as of November 28, 2000 from RedInn Hotel, L.P. to TransNation Title
Insurance Company for the benefit of GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corporation.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
February 3, 2003; SEC File No. 000-497438).
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4.21

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

Assumption and Modification Agreement dated January 17, 2003 by and among Weils
Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A., GMAC Commercial Mortgage Securities, Inc., RedInn
Hotel, L.P., AHT Redmond, Inc., W.I. Realty, L.C., W.I. Realty I, L.P., Apple
Hospitality Two, Inc. and AHM-SPE I, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3
to Current Report on Form-8-K filed on February 3, 2003; SEC File No. 000-49748).

Consent to Merger dated as of March 29, 2002 by and between Marriott Residence Inn
Limited Partnership, AHT Res I GP, Inc., RIBM One LLC, AHM Res I Limited
Partnership and LaSalle Bank National Association, as Trustee for Mortgage Pass-
Through Certificates Series 1996-2. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the same
number to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-
53984).

Consent to Merger dated as of March 29, 2002 by and between Marriott Residence Inn
Limited Partnership, AHT Res I GP, Inc., RIBM One LLC, AHM Res I Limited
Partnership and LaSalle Bank National Association, as Indenture Trustee for the
benefit of the Holders of iStar Asset Receivables Trust Collateralized Mortgage Bonds
Series 2000-1. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the same number to Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Amendment and Restatement of Management Agreement dated as of March 29, 2002
by and between Residence Inn by Marriott, Inc. and AHM Res I Limited Partnership.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the same number to Current Report on Form
8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Master Hotel Lease Agreement dated as of March 29, 2002 by and between Marriott
Residence Inn Limited Partnership and AHM Res I Limited Partnership. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit of the same number to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Owner Agreement dated as of March 29, 2002 by and between Marriott Residence Inn
Limited Partnership, AHM Res I Limited Partnership and Residence Inn by Marriott,
Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the same number to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of Marriott Residence Inn
Limited Partnership (a subsidiary of registrant owning real property). (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit of the same number to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April
15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Limited Partnership Agreement of AHM Res I Limited Partnership (a subsidiary of
registrant leasing real property). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the same
number to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-
53984).

Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement of Residence Inn III LLC (a
subsidiary of registrant owning real property). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of
the same number to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No.
333-53984).
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10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.1%

Amendment to Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement of Residence Inn III
LLC. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the same number to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Amended and Restated Management Agreement dated as of August 28, 2002 by AHM
Res II Limited Partnership and Residence Inn by Marriott, Inc. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002;
SEC File No. 333-53984).

Master Hotel Lease Agreement dated as of August 28, 2002 by and between Marriott
Residence Inn II Limited Partnership and AHM Res 1T Limited Partnership (regarding
22 hotels). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on September 12, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Schedule setting forth information on a substantially identical Master Hotel Lease
Agreement (regarding one hotel). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Amended and Restated Certificate of Limited Partnership of Marriott Residence Inn I
Limited Partnership (a subsidiary of registrant owning real property). {Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002;
SEC File No. 333-53984).

Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of Marriott Residence Inn 11
Limited Partnership (a subsidiary of registrant owning real property). (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002;
SEC File No. 333-53984).

Amended and Restated Certificate of Limited Partnership of AHM Res II Limited
Partnership (a subsidiary of registrant leasing real property). (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.6 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002; SEC File
No. 333-53984).

Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of AHM Res II Limited
Partnership (a subsidiary of registrant leasing real property). (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.7 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002; SEC File
No. 333-53984).

Hotel Lease Agreement dated January 17, 2003 by and between AHT Redmond, Inc.
and AHM-SPE [, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on February 3, 2003; SEC File No. 000-49748).

Management Agreement dated January 28, 1998 by RedInn Hotel, L.P. and Residence
Inn by Marriott, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on February 3, 2003; SEC File No. 000-49748).

Assignment, Assumption and Amendment of Management Agreement dated as of
January 17, 2003 by and among RedInn Hotel, L.P., AHM-SPE I, Inc. and Residence
Inn By Marriott, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on February 3, 2003; SEC File No. 000-49748).
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10.20

10.21

10.22

99.1

99.2

99.3

*Filed herewith
**Compensatory

Owner Agreement dated as of January 17, 2003 by and among AHT Redmond, Inc.,
AHM-SPE 1, Inc. and Residence Inn by Marriott, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 3, 2003; SEC File No.
000-49748).

2001 Incentive Plan effective April 30, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4
to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11, as amended, filed on May 22,
2002; SEC File No. 333-84098). **

2001 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan effective April 30, 2001
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-11, as amended, filed May 22, 2002; SEC File No. 333-84098).**

Confirmation of Receipt of Assurances from Arthur Andersen LLP (provided in
accordance with SEC Release No. 34-45590 (effective March 18, 2002)).
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Certification of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

Certification of the Company’s Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Action of 2002.*

plan or arrangement
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly

authorized.

Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.

By: /s/ Glade M. Knight Date: March 27, 2003
: Glade M. Knight, .

Chairman of the Board,

Chief Executive Officer,

and President

/s/ David S. McKenney Date: March 27, 2003
David S. McKenney,

Senior Vice President

Chief Financial Officer

and Treasurer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature Capacities
/s/ Glade M. Knight Director, Chief Executive Officer,
Glade M. Knight and President
/s/ Lisa B. Kern Director
Lisa B. Kern
/s/ Bruce H. Matson Director

Bruce H. Matson

/s/ Michael S. Waters Director
Michael S. Waters

/s/ Robert M. Wily Director
Robert M. Wily
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EXHIBIT INDEX
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2.1

2.2

23

24

2.5

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

Agreement and Plan of Merger among Apple Hospitality Two, Inc., Hospitality
Acquisition Company and Apple Suites, Inc. dated October 24, 2002. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 25, 2002; SEC
File No. 333-53984).

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of November 28, 2001 by and between Apple
Hospitality Two, Inc., Marriott Residence Inn Limited Partnership, AHT Res
Acquisition, L.P. and RIBM One LLC. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Certificate of Merger dated March 28, 2002 (with effective date of March 29, 2002) for
merger of AHT Res Acquisition, L.P. with and into Marriott Residence Inn Limited
Partnership. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of April 30, 2002 by and among Apple
Hospitality Two, Inc., AHT Res II Acquisition, L.P., RIBM Two LLC and Marriott
Residence Inn II Limited Partnership. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Certificate of Merger dated August 28, 2002 for merger of AHT Res II Acquisition,
L.P. with and into Marriott Residence Inn II Limited Partnership (as surviving entity).
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
September 12, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
Form S-11 filed by Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.; SEC File No. 333-77055).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to Form S-11 filed by Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.; SEC File No. 333-
77055).

First Amendment to Loan Agreement dated as of April 23, 1996 by and between
Marriott Residence Inn Limited Partnership {Borrower) and German American Capital
Corporation (Lender) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Annual Report of
Marriott Residence Inn Limited Partnership on Form 10-K filed on January 23, 1998;
SEC File No. 033-20022).

Loan Agreement dated as of October 10, 1995 by and between Marriott Residence Inn
Limited Partnership (Borrower) and German American Capital Corporation (Lender)
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Annual Report of Marriott Residence Inn
Limited Partnership on Form 10-K filed on January 23, 1998; SEC File No. 033-
20022).
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4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

Indemnity Agreement dated October 10, 1995 by Marriott Residence Inn Limited
Partnership (Borrower) and RIBM One Corporation (collectively, the Indemnitors) in
favor of German American Capital Corporation (Lender) (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Annual Report of Marriott Residence Inn Limited Partnership on Form
10-K filed on January 23, 1998; SEC File No. 033-20022).

Four Party Agreement dated as of October 10, 1995 by and among Marriott Residence
Inn Limited Partnership (Borrower), German American Capital Corporation (Senior
Lender), Starwood Mezzanine Investors, L.P. (Subordinate Lender) and Residence Inn
by Marriott, Inc. (Manager) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Annual
Report of Marriott Residence Inn Limited Partnership on Form 10-K filed on January
23, 1998; SEC File No. 033-20022).

Loan Agreement dated as of October 10, 1995 by and between Marriott Residence Inn

. Limited Partnership (Borrower) and Starwood Mezzanine Investors, L.P. (Lender)

(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Annual Report of Marriott Residence Inn
Limited Partnership on Form 10-K filed on January 23, 1998; SEC File No. 033-
20022).

Loan Agreement dated as of April 20, 1988 by and between Marriott Residence Inn
Limited Partnership and The Sanwa Bank Limited (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to Annual Report of Marriott Residence Inn Limited Partnership on Form
10-K filed on January 23, 1998; SEC File No. 033-20022).

Loan Modification Agreement dated as of March 29, 2002 by and among Marriott
Residence Inn Limited Partnership, AHT Res I GP, Inc., AHM Res I Limited
Partnership and LaSalle Bank National Association, as Trustee for Mortgage Pass-
Through Certificates Series 1996-2. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Loan Modification Agreement dated as of March 29, 2002 by and among Marriott
Residence Inn Limited Partnership, AHT Res I GP, Inc., AHM Res I Limited
Partnership and LaSalle Bank National Association, as Indenture Trustee for the
benefit of the Holders of iStar Asset Receivables Trust Collateralized Mortgage Bonds
Series 2000-1. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to Cuirent Report on Form 8-
K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Security Agreement dated as of March 29, 2002 by and between AHM Res I Limited
Partnership and LaSalle Bank National Association, as Trustee for Mortgage Pass-
Through Certificates Series 1996-2. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Security Agreement dated as of March 29, 2002 by and between AHM Res I Limited
Partnership and LaSalle Bank National Association, as Indenture Trustee for the
benefit of the Holders of iStar Asset Receivables Trust Collateralized Mortgage Bonds
Series 2000-1. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 to Current Report on Form 8-
K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).
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4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

First Amendment to Four Party Agreement dated as of March 29, 2002 by and between
Marriott Residence Inn Limited Partnership, Residence Inn by Marriott, Inc., AHM
Res I Limited Partnership, LaSalle Bank National Association, as Trustee for
Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Series 1996-2, and LaSalle Bank National
Association, as Indenture Trustee for the benefit of the Holders of iStar Asset
Receivables Trust Collateralized Mortgage Bonds Series 2000-1. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.11 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC
File No. 333-53984).

Ratification and First Amendment to Intercreditor Agreement dated as of March 29,
2002 by and between Marriott Residence Inn Limited Partnership, LaSalle Bank
National Association, as Trustee for Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Series 1996-
2, and LaSalle Bank National Association, as Indenture Trustee for the benefit of the
Holders of iStar Asset Receivables Trust Collateralized Mortgage Bonds Series 2000-

" 1. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.12 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Acknowledgment, Waiver, Consent and Amendment dated as of August 28, 2002 by
and between Marriott Residence Inn IT Limited Partnership (Borrower), LaSalle Bank
National Association (f/k/a LaSalle National Bank), as Trustee for Nomura Asset
Securities Corporation Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 1996-
MD V (Lender). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form
8-K filed on September 12, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Facility Mortgagee Agreement dated as of August 28, 2002 by and between Marriott
Residence Inn II Limited Partnership (Borrower), AHM Res II Limited Partnership
(Tenant), Apple Hospitality Two, Inc. and LaSalle Bank National Association (f/k/a
LaSalle National Bank), as Trustee for Nomura Asset Securities Corporation
Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 1996-MD V (Lender).
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
September 12, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Supplemental Assignment of Leases and Rents dated as of August 28, 2002 by and
between Marriott Residence Inn I Limited Partnership (Borrower) and LaSalle Bank
National Association (f’k/a LaSalle National Bank), as Trustee for Nomura Asset
Securities Corporation Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 1996-
MD V (Lender). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Current Report on Form
8-K filed on September 12, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Supplemental Security Agreement dated as of August 28, 2002 by and between
Marriott Residence Inn IT Limited Partnership (Debtor) and LaSalle Bank National
Association (f/k/a LaSalle National Bank), as Trustee for Nomura Asset Securities
Corporation Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates, Series 1996-MD V
(Secured Party). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Current Report on Form
8-K filed on September 12, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Tenant Security Agreement dated as of August 28, 2002 by and between Marriott
Residence Inn I Limited Partnership (Secured Party) and AHM Res I1 Limited
Partnership (Debtor). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).
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10.3

104

10.5

Deed of Trust, Assignment of Leases and Profits, Security Agreement and Fixture
Filing dated as of November 28, 2000 from RedInn Hotel, L.P. to TransNation Title
Insurance Company for the benefit of GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corporation.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Current Report on Form 8-X filed on
September 12; 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Deed Of Trust Note dated November 28, 2000 in the original principal amount of
$20,500,000 and made payable to the order of GMAC Commercial Mortgage
Corporation. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on February 3, 2003; SEC File No. 000-49748).

Deed of Trust, Assignment of Leases and Profits, Security Agreement and Fixture
Filing dated as of November 28, 2000 from Redinn Hotel, L.P. to TransNation Title
Insurance Company for the benefit of GMAC Commercial Mortgage Corporation.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
February 3, 2003; SEC File No. 000-49748).

Assumption and Modification Agreement dated January 17, 2003 by and among Wells
Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A., GMAC Commercial Mortgage Securities, Inc., RedInn
Hotel, L.P., AHT Redmond, Inc., W.I. Realty, L.C., W.I. Realty [, L.P., Apple
Hospitality Two, Inc. and AHM-SPE I, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3
to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 3, 2003; SEC File No. 000-49748).

Consent to Merger dated as of March 29, 2002 by and between Marriott Residence Inn
Limited Partnership, AHT Res I GP, Inc., RIBM One LLC, AHM Res I Limited
Partnership and LaSalle Bank National Association, as Trustee for Mortgage Pass-
Through Certificates Series 1996-2. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the same
number to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-
53984). -

Consent to Merger dated as of March 29, 2002 by and between Marriott Residence Inn
Limited Partnership, AHT Res I GP, Inc., RIBM One LLC, AHM Res I Limited
Partpership and LaSalle Bank National Association, as Indenture Trustee for the
benefit of the Holders of iStar Asset Receivables Trust Collateralized Mortgage Bonds
Series 2000-1. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the same number to Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Amendment and Restatement of Management Agreement dated as of March 29, 2002
by and between Residence Inn by Marriott, Inc. and AHM Res I Limited Partnership.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the same number to Current Report on Form
8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Master Hotel Lease Agreement dated as of March 29, 2002 by and between Marriott
Residence Inn Limited Partnership and AHM Res I Limited Partnership. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit of the same number to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Owner Agreement dated as of March 29, 2002 by and between Marriott Residence Inn
Limited Partnership, AHM Res I Limited Partnership and Residence Inn by Marriott,
Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the same number to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).
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10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of Marriott Residence Inn
Limited Partnership (a subsidiary of registrant owning real property). (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit of the same number to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April
15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Limited Partnership Agreement of AHM Res I Limited Partnership (a subsidiary of
registrant leasing real property). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the same
number to Current Report on Form §8-K filed on Aprnil 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-
53984).

Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement of Residence Inn III LLC (a
subsidiary of registrant owning real property). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of
the same number to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No.
333-53984).

Amendment to Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement of Residence Inn III
LLC. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the same number to Current Report on
Form &-K filed on April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Amended and Restated Management Agreement dated as of August 28, 2002 by AHM
Res II Limited Partnership and Residence Inn by Marriott, Inc. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002,
SEC File No. 333-53984).

Master Hotel Lease Agreement dated as of August 28, 2002 by and between Marriott
Residence Inn II Limited Partnership and AHM Res II Limited Partnership (regarding
22 hotels). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on September 12, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Schedule setting forth information on a substantially identical Master Hotel Lease
Agreement (regarding one hotel). (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

Amended and Restated Certificate of Limited Partnership of Marriott Residence Inn II
Limited Partnership (a subsidiary of registrant owning real property). (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002;
SEC File No. 333-53984).

Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of Marriott Residence Inn 11
Limited Partnership (a subsidiary of registrant owning real property). (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002;
SEC File No. 333-53984).

Amended and Restated Certificate of Limited Partnership of AHM Res I Limited
Partnership (a subsidiary of registrant leasing real property). (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.6 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002; SEC File
No. 333-53984).
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Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of AHM Res II Limited
Partnership (a subsidiary of registrant leasing real property). (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.7 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002; SEC File
No. 333-53984).

Hotel Lease Agreement dated January 17, 2003 by and between AHT Redmond, Inc.
and AHM-SPE I, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on February 3, 2003; SEC File No. 600-46748).

Management Agreement dated January 28, 1998 by RedInn Hotel, L.P. and Residence
Inn by Marriott, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on February 3, 2003; SEC File No. 000-49748).

Assignment, Assumption and Amendment of Management Agreement dated as of
January 17, 2003 by and among RedInn Hotel, L.P., AHM-SPE I, Inc. and Residence
Inn By Marriott, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on February 3, 2003; SEC File No. 000-49748).

Owner Agreement dated as of January 17, 2003 by and among AHT Redmond, Inc.,
AHM-SPE 1, Inc. and Residence Inn by Marriott, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 3, 2003; SEC File No.
000-49748).

2001 Incentive Plan effective April 30, 2001 (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4
to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-11, as amended, filed on May 22,
2002; SEC File No. 333-84098). **

10.22 2001 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan effective April 30, 2001
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-11, as amended, filed May 22, 2002; SEC File No. 333-84098).%*

99.1 Confirmation of Receipt of Assurances from Arthur Andersen LLP (provided in
accordance with SEC Release No. 34-45590 (effective March 18, 2002)).
{Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
April 15, 2002; SEC File No. 333-53984).

99.2 Certification of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*

99.3 Certification of the Company’s Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Action of 2002.*

*Filed herewith
**Compensatory plan or arrangement
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CERTIFICATIONS

[, Glade M. Knight, certify that:

L.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have
identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect
internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective
actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 27, 2003 /s/ Glade M. Knight

Glade M. Knight
Chief Executive Officer
Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.
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I, David S. McKenney, certify that:

1.

2.

/s/ David S. McKenney

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the
registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date
within 90 days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date™); and

¢) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have
identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not
there were significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect
internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective
actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

David S. McKenney
Chief Financial Officer
Apple Hospitality Two, Inc.
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Exhibit 99.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Apple Hospitality Two, Inc., (the “Company”) on Form 10-K
for the year ending December 31, 2002 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the
date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that: (1) the Report fully complies
with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934; and (2) the
information contained in the Report fairly represents, in all material respects, the financial conditions
and results of operations of the Company as of December 31, 2002, and for the period then ended.

/s/ Glade M. Knight
Glade M. Knight
Chief Executive Officer

March 27, 2003
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Exhibit 99.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Apple Hospitality Two, Inc., (the “Company”) on Form 10-K
for the year ending December 31, 2002 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the
date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that: (1) the Report fully complies
with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1534; and (2) the
information contained in the Report fairly represents, in all material respects, the financial conditions
and results of operations of the Company as of December 31, 2002, and for the period then ended.

/s/ David S. McKenney
David S. McKenney
Chief Financial Officer

March 27, 2003
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